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(1)
(
(2009 11 )
( ) )
47,623,6529.47 100.[02
47,623,6529.47 100./02
-10,451.709 -0.p2
47,613,p77.68
C 41 ) 100./00
()
(
(2009 11 )
( ) )
28,658,p80.26 94.[5
2,634,057.67 8. 71
31,292,[737.93 103.|45
-1,044,B11.49 -3.45
30,247,Pp26. 44
G2 62 ) 100./00
(
(2009 11 )
( ) )
15,130,p62.91 91.B2
2,615, 767.509 15.F9
17,746,p30.50 107.[11
-1,178,p01.77 -7.01
16,567,p28. 73
G2 157 ) 100./00
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(2009 11 )
( ) ()
30,939,B82.43 66.43
3,374,5986.43 7. 95
2,252,564.00 4. 84
1,646, 882.64 3. 54
38,213,p15.50 82.p5
8,359, 603.57 17.P5
(4 64,,507433, D 1 9). 07 100 loo
(2009 11 )
( ) ¢ )
149,372,/506.58 54.p6
143,384,/274.98 52.p8
292,756,/781.56 106.|34
-17,457,/]993.82 -6.pB4
(2 7253,,289989, 78 7). 74 100 loo
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(2)

(2009 11 )

BREVAN HOWARD FUND L TD 45,35(3.16302 | 86021, p6a789e7116, p3a77|05
USD SHS
?g?O;T OPPORTIUNI TI ES| OCT 5,3801887669871, L4738%78870, p6a55(as
gSSBAS'A FEEDER FUNDI LTD 6,27h13606068656, La114$77600, p1a47|50
0Z ASI A OVERSEAS FUND LTD 3,8661081731932, 2626944907, p5204|31
gRlGLOBAL FUNDP CL B ASIA 6,49h.843| 25881, B7206883594, B689a .45
gyg CREDI'T OPP US SERIES 5,0761981859773, p8885488498, L00. a5
gbéERSTON AST A PAC MAY 38, 70[0.1003|86023, b 1694582 650, p057.8(7
EENEERSON JARAN ARFILTD 17, 48/0.2008| 82000, poaoa¢32624, | 587 .8(1
MBAM GLOBAL FUND LTD 16, 41|2.17198 | 73948, 16164822706, §315 .39
1 ggYGLOBAL FUND CL B ASIA 759| 5646|1814, 86870889836, 957 181|3
HBE ASIA HOLDING LTD ¢LASS [ I
1408 A A NS 27 . |es7, 311.280,0p0, 968.2375, 8b4.0.768
1‘33 gLOBAL FUNP ASI A RORTF 360|90 - ; 6819946, 183. @152
L1srR GLoBAL FUND ASIA pORT 130l oo - ] 704|511, 652 Dolo
B 29F
14SR GLOBAL FUNDP I NC (ASIA) 4. b6 - ; 704|512, 9008, 38. 01
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(2009 11 )
( ) ( )
()
SR GLOBAL EMHRGI NG MKTS )
or Stos 4,53p.080]|85352, 3222p54894, p7aoslas
BREVAN HOWARD| EMERGI NG 39,632.1683| 88121, 5830063430, p5a78|®s
THAMES RI VERS NEVS Y
cHAMES 5586550837630, be678842a873, p24asslal
TREE LINE ASIA FD LTO 30, 00/0.1000]| 80000, poaoapds211, p5n0a.5p2
FﬁZER ALLAN PACIFIC FUND 13, 715.25148| 33000, poaoap8s797, b219.385
MOORE EMERGI|NG FI XED
MOORE S 2,4681382p21222, D1106821834, p53B. 6z
TUDOR GLOBAL EMERGI NG MAR 2, 0001000020000, P003BPTIB867, b66. ald
EMSO FUND SUB OCT 09 150 |1000, 00|01, 0500 0, §1000,. 000p91., 4550 1, b 1 84 .1{96
THAMES RI VER HI LLSI DH APE |
CcHANES R 565| 2544613882, 2302619956, P053.0{62
GL G EMERGI NG SPECI AL |
19583 & 9, 55p. 2081 ./01877, 904 .7764.|93734, 8b6.B.2h3
TUDOR GLOBAL EMERGI|NG
14y JDOR GLos 446|1900p. 006, 191900]| 0436, 888 184|a
12MARATHON MASTER FUND 472|ap00p. 422, 197720 2839, 9p4a14al2
1 fiBELB EMERGIING G 3 RO0O9 235[850. po - |1,215. 2286, 8170495
MARATHON OVERSEAS FUND
1qMARATHS 539 [000. po ; 399|8215,5p20981
1!?855PH' EMERGI NG EUROPE 11,0704 .19%5|24500, poo10p2 11, 31|4.a.20/4
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(2009 11 )
( ) ( )
()
POLAR CAPITA|l EUROPEAN |
PorhR o 12, 42|8. 2176 | 98696, 7218821673, haasilas
?éggPOWNE UK [EQUITY FUND 6,570.287| 88891, 9298680620, hoas53|82
yﬁﬁéTOR EUROPEAN HEpPGE 9,290.982| 23878, $7282p84615, 6155|709
ALPHAGEN VOLANTI S FPND
LTD CLAALPHAGEN VOLANTI S 16, 649.12388| 24300, poasadzi570, poas0|s2
FD LTD CLASS
E#SE BAY HI GH YIELD FUND 13,618 .13100| 86523, poacebe1728, poaoslas
gﬁgA JANDAKOT| LEVERAGED F 12,436 14276 20571, 2127822584, $02a 586
FORTELUS SPECT AL
SITUATION 8 I FOREI|GN 836|4997| 8834, 68a,60p814337, 378.9{7
MUTUAL FUND
FORTELLUS SPECI AL dprs
PO EE LS BT AL 9 no 758|6998| 0257, 1h2,86f13219, h277.7[86
OZ EUROPE OVHRSEAS HUND [

USD MUTUAL FUND 1,10p.880]|6%331, 5125164637, 4Y030B|5

FORTELUS SPEC| AL CL |A SF 328|1668610| 6266, 32783|8257,5f8.13.5p5

AMBER FUND C(CLASS J S

I NT1 AL 328196320207, 9p8426| 3145, 1f5.®.788

FORTELUS SPEC| AL CL A SP 1651380814133, 7977817629, 289.00.3f8

HENDERSON EUROPEAN

ABSOLUTE RE 2961 6305|980, 76(3.29404 | 4472,50[8. D4 44

ALPHAGEN VOLANTI S FOREI GN

MUTUAL FUND 1.90 - - |46, 27/8. 84, 27|8.@B.12|8

JANDAKOT LEVHRAGED HUND
USD CLJANDAKOIT LEVERAGED 1,617.9710.|71114, 494 .2771.13644, 26|6. @4 p7
FUND USD CL

LANSDOWNE UK |[EQUI TY |FUND

LTD LANSDOWNIE UK EQUI TY 1.90 - - |36, 12/6. 86, 12/6.®.82|2
EUR

TFORTELUS SPEC| AL CL A SP 20.|/90639]1 6213, 36/8.41654| 859, 71p. B0 0|6
TRI DENT EUROIPEAN FUND

CL: B EUR FORHI GN MUTUAL 45.]178233] 5910, 69|3.22035| 539, 408. 7. P6
FUND

FORTELUS SPEC| AL CL A SP 8.10912|567,39%51403p.58, 424.8®.0P5
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(2009 11 )
( ) ( )
()
CLIVE FUND cCL|A 48,496.7217| 084675, ps1.1728| 64733, hsm |oe
SECTOR COGNITA Nov 09 suB | 40,622.6398.|47 000, poo. 00 .|e36 967, bB7 25
FORTRESS COMMPDI TI ES |RST 1.020 862, p288862, p38,8L27%, pPB9183, P69 §a3
OCEANI C HEDGE| FUND GYY 974|242, 55625889, B503,100p22932, [ 59 pa2
PAULSON ADVANTAGE LTD
b s O UsR 9,66p.66788|87750, po020@0|72.,0100, f 58 p&3
BROCADE FUND fL 1 USI 21,509. 6421|22603, pas5.1659| 235782, pBLbHa2
RAB GLBL MINING CLASY B 23,07)3.6199.|628 300, p00.10003| 37389, f33)@8
ELTOP'A MULTI [ I NDEX RD EI 261] 447, 65010999, p969.,8068p293274, G0 LD8
CHILTON GLOBAL NATURAL
RESOURCFUND dLASS D |UsD 200/ 0a0, 00[c2., 000, poaioasl2 252, bas pao
RESTRI CTED
FORTRESS COMMPDI TIES|FUND
LP S16 RESTRICTED NON 1.02, 000, P2P00O, p20,0.0060, k23188, h23 522
NEW | SSUE
MARTI N CURRIE|GLBL RHSC 87,05/5.580.[110 750, poo.as.|912 646, pa32bas
$OCEANI'C HEDGE| FUND SUB 491|583, 05113800, po03,0001p12279, 89 |B6
NOV 09
FORTRESS COMMPDI TI ES |[FUND ]
SRSV & 1,000, $900.00. p0, 000, p0o0.010. P2, 015, L20 J80
GEOSPHERE FUNDP LTD U9gD
terssehes 1,009.010 00p10000, POOL,0001B10G13, P20 @O
SI NOPI A MULTI|INDEX HD EI
3NN 0e iUk 999,995.85.. P0999, 9p5.851. P0999, 9b2. 45
§GENUS DYNAMI C| GOLD si|DE 2,39h.88149|0256,8p4. 21842|5841,3p8H. §3B
RAB ENERGY FUND LTD NOV
1REDEMPRAB ENERGY FUND LTD 1,419.18100| 0041, 9007. 7901|8744, 57D. ga
NOV REDEMP
BTG BROCADE MARCRO FUND
LI MI TEDCLASS B1 USD 1.¢90 . . 7,65p.42,6580482
GEOSPHERE FUND LTD SUB 2,000.00 00020000, P0O. 010. PO 2, 00

NOV 09

.00(')0

38/364



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(2009 11 )
( ) ( )
()
WI NT ON FUTURES L EAD
SERI ES USD MUTUAL FUND 72, 43|6.62602 {4572, 9 9 0,|5 1760.82|9612, 329 ,|6 5118 .§6/5
BLUETREND USD| MUTUAL |FUND 181, 9p0134 2668 329,|9 7206.01|8873, 46 8 ,|5 3197 .324
DI SCUSS FEEDEIR LI MI TED B 5 f
UusD MUTUAL EDLND 36, 84{31L,3048 $4.06,80 0 0 ,]010,02 10p3.47,29 3 8 ,|4 3156 .§H2
BORONI A DI VERBI FI ED HUND
USD MUTUAL FuUlD 25, 4811 ,0707 $4.52,32 0 9 ,|210,97.10p9.38,06 4 3 ,|8 5155 .®P5
TULI P TREND |[FUND UBD
MUTUAL FUND 11, 75[22,4072 92.38 08 55, 137,41.88'15.74,2424, 7 8153 .3%9
ngOR TENSOR FUND LI MI TED 8,89[168851.59,7000,010,07.10L(D.57,9247,3654..5[41
CRABEL FUND CL A LXXI|V 10, 00/01,0000 91.00,00 00,|0 090.70{08 107 8, L 043 .480
CRABEL FUTURE|IS FUND KLVI
p
USD MUTUAL FUND 6,59P10000p60H690, 9PQ0D3A2P8B83882, P9 83 .43
BLUETREND CLABS A GSY 18, 37|3.271373|1 93298, 15274055044, p171 .43
CRABEL FURUREP FUND NAR
1 08 USD MUTUALI FuUND 5,00P10000p50000, 005686022766, P751 .93
CRABEL FUTURHS FUND |USD
1 MUTUAL FUND 3,169P1000030060, 2A050Q@Q45744, y61. 3|2
CRABEL FUTURHS FUND |APR
1‘08 USD MUTUAL| FUND 5,00P1000050000, 002686022616, D841 .2¢/8
13BLUETREND CLAPBS B GSY 14, 93]4.202731 39333, 3260883895, #881.1182
CRABEL FUTURHS FUND |MAY
1‘08 USD MUTUAL| FUND 2,50p10000p20B600, 0030921327, F660.285
CRABEL FUTURE|IS FUND KLI V |
lLUSD MUTUAL EUND 1,60p10000p10600, 2042626282, 8D. B|B
CRABEL FUTURHS FUND |USD
l(MUTUAL FUND 1,259P1001f719272, 40020817619, Y090 .2¥K9
1CRABEL FUTURES XLV USD
1 MUTUAL FUND 1,08p1000010080, 9000368013898, B720.0L4
CRABEL FUND L|ITD CL- A| S-1
1 USD MUTUAL FUND 3051 686838812834,pa130p17816, #8990 .98
CRABEL FUTURHS FUND |USD
D
1 MUTUAL FUND 7501 @0009p. 060, 090p0Q,0880L16Q206, R170.687
CRABEL FUTUREPBP XXXVI I UsSD 5
2 MUTUAL FUND 4411 28131.200,0p0,a268.68604, 7p3.M%.2P3
GSA CAPI TAL FUTURES| FD
21L 1 MI TEDGSA CAPI TAL 5,47P2.100] 1947, 755 .98%.|131543, 444.0Q.7R0
FUTURES FD LI MI TED
CRABEL FUND QLASS A |SER
Z‘XLII USD MUTURL FUND 300l @Q000DP.B00, 0900, @368. 287, 484.0.516
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(3)
2009 11
()
(1998 ) - - | — - -
(1999 ) - i - -
(2000 ) - N - -
(2001 ) - — | — - -
(2002 ) - - | — - -
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CQS Asia Feeder Fund — Class B 6,248 6,634 14.11%
Ellerston Asia PAC May SUB 38,700 3,752 7.98%
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MBAM Pan-Asian Fund Limited — Class Dollar A 16,413 2,774 5.90%
OZ Asia Overseas Fund Ltd 3,866 4,659 9.91%
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44,413 94.47%
2,596 5.53%
47,009 100.00%
2009/7/31 2008/7/31
253,142.60 529,954.02
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HB Asia Holding Ltd 424 3,535
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Tree Line Asia Fund Class U2 68,668 8,072
Ellerston USD Mutual Fund 85,000 7,556
Highbridge Asia Opportunities 7,035 7,066
Boyer Allan Pacific Class A USD 11,662 6,991
SR Global Fund Class B Asia S 1 11,034 6,000
CQS Asia Feeder Fund Ltd - Class B 6,248 5,811
WF Asia Fund Limited -Class S Series 1 21,438 5,584
Brevan Howard Fund Ltd USD SHS 27,657 4,736
Optimal Asia Pacific Fund Jan Sub 50,531 4,249
Optimal Asia Pacific Fund USD 50,000 4,202
MBAM Pan-Asian Fund Limited — Class Dollar A 23,956 4,000
Oz Asia Overseas Fund Ltd USD 3,016 3,000
SR Global Fund Class B AsiaS1 U 5,723 3,000
HB Asia Holding Ltd 332 2,891
WEF Asia Fund Ltd Class S 20 27,390 2,081
Arnott Opportunities Oct 1st S 1,509 2,000
Tree Line Asia - Class R, Series 1 7,363 858
Tree Line Asia - Class R, Series 1 7,037 687
PMA Credit Opp US Series 080 589 513
79,297

* 2%
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HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 JULY 2009

Portfolio of investments
Current assets:

Debtors
Cash and bank balances

Less:
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets/(liabilities)

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)

31 July 2009

Notes US$'000

7 4,457
8 ____ 9

4,553
9 (1,957)

US$'000

44,413

2,596

47,009

Ooooooooooooooooooad

31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
128,713
544
108
652
(6,458)
(5,806)
122,907

The financial statements on pages 6 to 17 were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management
(Guernsey) Limited, on 11 December 2009 and were signed on its behalf by:

P. Wrench
Director

M. Quarrington
Director

The notes on pages 9 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
Notes US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Net loss on investments 2 (8,538) (3,785)
Other (losses)/gains 3 (2,853) 2,291
Revenue 4 7 11
Finance cost: interest (318) (342)
Operating expenses 5 (1,175) (2,662)
Net expenses (1,486) (2,993)
Net decrease in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares from investment
activities (12,877) (4,487)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the year 122,907 106,089

Movement due to issue and redemption of redeemable
participating shares:

Amounts received/receivable on issues 6,036 51,705
Less: amounts paid/payable on redemptions (69,057) (30,400)
(63,021) 21,305
Net decrease in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares from investment
activities (12,877) (4,487)

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year 47,009 122,907

The Fund has no other recognised gains and losses other than those noted above.

The notes on pages 9 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009

1 August 2008 to 1 August 2007 to
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Operating activities
Changes in net assets attributable to the holders of
participating shares (12,877) (4,487)
Adjustments for:
Net realised and unrealised loss on non-derivative
securities 8,538 3,785
Unrealised (gain)/loss on forward contracts (103) 125
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease in other debtors 8 3
Decrease in accrued expenses and payables (150) (909)
Cash flow from operating activities (4,584) (1,483)
Investing activities
Purchase of investments (7,535) (56,291)
Sale of investments 79,381 38,092
Cash flow from investing activities 71,846 (18,199)
Financing activities
Cashflow from debt - (decrease)/increase in loans payable (4,892) 794
Proceeds from issue of redeemable shares 6,675 49,292
Payments on redemptions of redeemable shares (69,057) (30,400)
Cash flow from financing activities (67,274) 19,686
(Decrease)/increase in cash for the year (12) 4
Cash at the beginning of the year 108 104
Cash at the end of the year 96 108
Reconciliation of net cashflow to movement in net debt
Note
(Decrease)/Increase in cash for the year (12) 4
Cashflow from changes in debt 4,892 (794)
Movement in net debt in the year 4,880 (790)
Net Debt at start of the year (5,296) (4,506)
Net Debt at end of the year 16 (416) (5,296)

The notes on pages 9 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the Fund's financial statements:

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as adjusted by the
revaluation of investments and foreign exchange forward contracts, and in accordance with applicable UK
accounting standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds issued by Investment
Management Association in December 2005.

Investments

Investments in investment funds are valued at the closing net asset value per share for the underlying
investments that the Fund holds, as at 5 pm (Guernsey time) on the Balance Sheet date. Realised and
unrealised surpluses and deficits on investments are included in the Statement of Total Return. Purchases and
sales of the investments are accounted for on a trade date plus one basis.

Revenue

Investment income and deposit interest are included on an accruals basis.
Expenses

Expenses are included on an accruals basis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to US Dollars at the foreign
currency closing exchange rate ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The Fund reports the realised exchange
gain or loss as well as the unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US Dollar denominated
investments in the Statement of Total Return. Any realised exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised
appreciation or depreciation arising from non-US Dollar denominated payables and receivables and on foreign
currency transactions are reflected in the Statement of Total Return.

Foreign currency contracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to
the difference between the contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract unrealised appreciation is
reported as an asset and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liability in the Balance Sheet.

Cash Flow Statement

The Fund has prepared a Cash Flow Statement for the first time this year as the exemption under FRS 1
(Revised) no longer applies due to the fact that a substantial level of the Fund’s investments are not deemed as
being highly liquid as disclosed in Note 15 — Liquidity Risk.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arise from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the Statement of
Total Return on an accruals basis.

Shares in issue

Redeemable Participating shares are redeemable at the option of the holder of Redeemable Participating
shares and will be classified as financial liabilities.
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HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (CONTINUED)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Fund’s investment portfolio is carried at fair value.

Gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities held or issued for trading

The net gain/loss on financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the Statement of Total Return.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The functional and presentation currency is US Dollar, because that is the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Fund operates.

NET LOSSES ON INVESTMENTS Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Net losses on non-derivative investments (8,538) (3,785)
OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Other currency (losses)/gains (2,853) 2,291
REVENUE Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Bank interest 7 11
OPERATING EXPENSES Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Payable to the manager and its associates:
Management fee (1,018) (1,990)
Performance fee - (486)
(1,018) (2,476)
Payable to the trustee and its associates:
Trustee fees (62) (121)
Other expenses:
Audit fees (8) 8)
Formation expenses 5) (6)
Other sundry expenses (82) (51)
(95) (65)
Total operating expenses (1,175) (2,662)
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HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
6 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 23 July 1999, which constituted Republic Uni-Folio, Republic
Management (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Manager of the Fund, dealing with its administrative
affairs. With effect from 31 March 2000, the Manager changed its name to HSBC Republic Management
(Guernsey) Limited. With effect from 1 January 2004, the Manager changed its name to HSBC Management
(Guernsey) Limited. The Manager receives a management fee of 1.65% of the net asset value per annum.

The fee outstanding at the year end was US$63,841 (2008: US$176,295).

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 23 July 1999, which constituted Republic Uni-Folio, Republic National
Bank of New York (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Trustee. With effect from 14 January 2000, the
Trustee changed its name to HSBC Republic Bank (Guernsey) Limited. With effect from 1 January 2004, the
Trustee changed its name to HSBC Private Bank (Guernsey) Limited. With effect 31 May 2008, the Trustee
changed its name to HSBC Private Bank (C.I.) Limited. The Trustee receives a fee of 0.10% of the net asset
value per annum. The fee outstanding at the year end was US$3,869 (2008: US$10,684).

Under the terms of an agreement dated 30 April 2004, the Manager appointed HSBC Republic Investments
Limited as the Investment Advisers of the Fund. With the effect 1 January 2007 the Investment Advisor
changed its name to HSBC Alternative Investments Limited. The Manager is entitled to a performance
incentive fee of 10% of new “excess” value over the Index (US Dollar 3 Month LIBOR plus 3.5% per annum).
The performance fee outstanding at the year end was US$Nil (2008: US$Nil).

7 DEBTORS
2009 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Amounts receivable on securities sold 437 437
Unrealised gain on forward contracts 5 -
Prepaid formation expense 15 23
Equalisation due from investments - 84
Amounts paid in advance of securities purchased 4,000 -
4,457 544
8 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2009 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Cash and bank balances 96 108
9 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2009 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Amount received in advance of issuing shares (1,363) (724)
Loans payable (note 13) (512) (5,404)
Accrued management expenses (64) (176)
Accrued trustee fees 4) (12)
Formation expense - (29)
Unrealised loss on forward contracts (note 14) - (98)
Other accrued expenses (14) (16)

(1,957) (6,458)
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The umbrella fund, HSBC Uni-Folio Fund, is exempt from Guernsey income tax under the Income Tax
(Exempt Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinance 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP 600 (2008:

GBP 600).

11 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC Asian AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) is a sub-fund of HSBC Uni-Folio, a unit trust which is authorised

as a Class B Scheme under the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990.

The Fund owns 100% of the shares in HSBC Republic Asian AdvantEdge Investments Limited (‘the Company
"), a BVI registered company. The Fund also loaned monies to the Company to fund its investing activities.

The Company owns the investments listed in the Portfolio Statement. The purpose of a Company holding the
investments is to ensure that any withholding tax on distributions from such investments may be reclaimed.

These financial statements include all the assets and liabilities of the Fund and the Company.

12 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES IN ISSUE

Redeemable participating shares in issue
at 1 August 2008

Issued on subscriptions
Redemptions

Redeemable participating shares in issue
at 31 July 2009

Redeemable participating shares
in issue at 1 August 2007

Issued on subscriptions
Redemptions

Redeemable participating shares
in issue at 31 July 2008

Number
US Dollar Class
529,954.02

38,898.33
(315,709.75)

Number
Euro Class
132,644.31

235.02
(123,055.20)

Number
Total
662,598.33

39,133.35
(438,764.95)

253,142.60 9,824.13 262,966.73
Number Number Number
US Dollar Class Euro Class Total
467,187.10 80,983.04 548,170.14
195,868.43 69,499.05 265,367.48
(133,101.51) (17,837.78) (150,939.29)
529,954.02 132,644.31 662,598.33
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13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited acts as Trustee to the Fund.

The Fund also places money on deposit with the Trustee on a regular basis throughout the year. The interest
rate received is consistent with that received on normal commercial deposits.

The Fund experienced an increased level of redemptions in November 2008 and to a lesser extent in
December 2008. These redemptions were largely met by a combination of available liquidity and utilisation of
credit facilities offered by HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited, which also acts as Trustee for the funds.

However, these levels of redemptions may have caused each of the Funds to exceed its borrowing limit (the “
Borrowing Limit") as set out in the current prospectus of HSBC Uni-Folio:

“The Fund may borrow up to 25% of its Net Asset Value as follows:
i. for a period of up to one month to cover a cash shortfall caused by mismatched settlement dates on
purchase and sale transactions and, for a period of up to three months, to fund redemptions; and
ii. for investment purposes, subject to a maximum of 10% of the Fund’s Net Asset Value, to facilitate
additional investment in Investment Funds.”

HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (the “Manager”) determined that this Borrowing Limit be temporarily
suspended for a period of up to three months from the date of the Shareholder Notice issued on 9 December
2008.

HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) provided loans of US$50,460,278 (2008: US$42,803,309) to the Fund during the
year. Loans of US$55,352,753 (US$42,009,178) were repaid. At the year end US$511,656 (2008:
US$5,404,131) inclusive of interest was outstanding. Interest was charged at an average floating rate of 2.04%
(2008: 4.64%) per annum. US$318,429 (2008: US$342,017) interest was charged for the year.

14 FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS
Assets may be denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each share class and certain
currency exposure will be hedged back to the relevant share class currency. Hedging for this purpose may be
by means of forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such contracts or by using such other derivative
instruments as may be available and having the same or similar effect. The Investment Adviser retains the right
to vary the policy on currency hedging at its absolute discretion. All costs of such hedging will be met by the
Holders of the relevant share class only.

The following forward exchange contract was outstanding at 31 July 2009 in respect of hedging of the HSBC
Asian AdvantEdge Fund — EUR Class:

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Gain
US$'000

28-Aug-09 EUR933,000 US$1,309,260 State Street Boston 5
5

The following forward exchange contract was outstanding at 31 July 2008 in respect of hedging of the HSBC
Asian AdvantEdge Fund — EUR Class:

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Loss
US$'000
29-Aug-08 EUR14,476,000 US$22,663,889 State Street Boston (98)

(98)
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The main risks arising from the Fund’s financial instruments are market price, foreign currency, liquidity and
credit risks.

(a) Market risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the
potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The
Investment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in order to minimise the risk associated with
particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund’s investment objective.

Market risk embodies the potential for both loss and gains and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk. The profitability of the Fund’s investment programme depends to a great extent on correct
assessments of the future course of price movements of securities and equities and other investments. There
can be no assurance that the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price movements. The securities
markets have in recent years been characterised by great volatility and unpredictability. With respect to the
investment strategy into which the Investment Adviser has invested the Fund’s assets, there is always some,
and from time to time a significant, degree of market risk.

Details of the Fund’s investment portfolio at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the portfolio statement
included on page 18.

(b)Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an
individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the market.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard investment and borrowing restrictions as defined in the
prospectus. The Fund’s investment restrictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Custodian of the Fund
and reviewed quarterly by the Board of Directors. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and
reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come close to restriction levels.

(c) Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than
its functional currency. Consequently the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative
to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse affect on the value of that portion of
the Funds assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than US Dollars.

The Funds currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies
and procedures in place. All currency exposure at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency of the relevant
share class on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund’s overall currency positions and
exposures are monitored on a monthly basis by the Board of Directors.

The Fund also offers redeemable participating shares denominated in Euro exposing the Fund to foreign
currency risk. This risk is mitigated by the Fund entering into foreign exchange contracts as described further in
this note.

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the
foreign currencies at 31 July 2009.

Total
Currency Total Forward FX Net
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Euro - 1,314 1,314
Us Dollar 47,004 (1,309) 45,695
47,004 5 47,009
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (CONTINUED)

(c) Foreign currency risk — (continued)

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the
foreign currencies at 31 July 2008

Total
Currency Total Forward FX Net
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Euro (115) 22,594 22,479
US Dollar 123,120 (22,692) 100,428
123,005 (98) 122,907

(d) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are in investments which neither pay interest nor have a maturity
date.

The underlying funds the Fund invests in are exposed to interest rate risk; however the Fund mitigates the risk
by diversifying its investments.

The Fund has borrowed US$511,656 at year end which bears interest at 1.12480%. To minimise interest rate
risk the Fund enters into floating rate loan agreements.

(e) Liquidity risk

The main liability of the Fund is the redemption of any shares that investors wish to sell. The risk is that the
Fund might not be able to liquidate investment positions in order to repay amounts demanded by its
shareholders.

The Fund’s liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Manager in accordance with
policies and procedures in place. It is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds, limited
partnerships or other vehicles that have no liquidity. The Fund’s overall liquidity risks are monitored on a
quarterly basis by the Board of Directors.

Residual Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund’s financial liabilities at 31 July 2009:
Less than 1 Greater than 5
year 1to5 years years Total
US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 USs$ ‘000 US$ ‘000

Liabilities
Amount received in advance of issuing shares (1,363) - - (1,363)
Loans payable (512) - - (512)
Accrued expenses (82) - - (82)
Total (1,957) - - (1,957)
The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund’s financial liabilities at 31 July 2008:
Less than 1 Greater than 5
year 1to5years years Total

US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 US$ '000

Liabilities

Amount received in advance of issuing shares (724) - - (724)
Loans payable (5,404) - - (5,404)
Unrealised loss on forward contracts (98) (98)
Accrued expenses (232) - - (232)
Total (6,458) - - (6,458)
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (CONTINUED)
(e) Liquidity risk — (continued)
The Fund'’s investment restrictions, as defined in the prospectus, some of which pertain to the management of
liquidity risk and concentrations thereof are monitored on a monthly basis by the custodian of the Fund. There
are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come
close to restriction levels.

The Manager may limit the number of shares in the Fund which may be redeemed on any dealing day.

At year end the following investee funds had put in place restrictions which limit the Fund’s ability to redeem its
investment holdings:

Market Value at

31 July 2009

US$'000

HB Asia Holding Ltd 2,891
PMA Credit Opportunities Fund Series 5,134
8,025

The Fund has prepared a Cash Flow Statement for the first time this year, as due to the market conditions a
substantial level of the Fund’s investments are not deemed as being highly liquid.

(f) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a Counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund will be exposed to a credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement
default. The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large number of
customers and counterparties on recognised and reputable exchanges.

Substantially all of the assets and cash of the Fund are held by the Custodian - State Street Custodial Services
(Ireland) Limited. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund’s rights with respect to
securities held by the Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Company monitors its risk by monitoring the
credit quality of the Custodian of the Fund.

16 ANALYSIS OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT

At 31 July 2009 Cash flow At 31 July 2008

US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000

Cash and bank balances 96 (12) 108
Loans payable (512) 4,892 (5,404)
Net Debt (416) 4,880 (5,296)
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17 DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend. All income will be “rolled-up”.

18 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

Due to a merger the Administrator changed from Investors Fund Services (Ireland) Limited to State Street
Fund Services (Ireland) Limited and the Custodian changed from Investors Trust and Custodial Services
(Ireland) Limited to State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited. The Administration and Custodian
agreements were novated on 1 February 2009. The office of Administrator was held throughout the year by
Investors Fund Services (Ireland) Limited/State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited respectively.

19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no significant events affecting the Fund since year end that require amendment to or
disclosure in the financial statements.
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HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

PORTFOLIO STATEMENT AS AT 31 JULY 2009

Security Description

Mutual Funds

U.S. Dollar (2008: 104.72%)

Arnott Opportunities OCT 1

Arnott Opportunity Fund Ltd

Brevan Howard Fund Ltd

CQS Asia Feeder Fund — Class B
Ellerston Asia PAC May SUB

HB Asia Holding Ltd

MBAM Pan-Asian Fund Limited — Class Dollar A
OZ Asia Overseas Fund Ltd

PMA Credit Opportunities Fund Series
SR Global Fund (Asia) Class B

SR Global Fund Asia Portfolio

SR Global Fund Class B Asia G

SR Global Fund Class B Asia S

SR Global Fund Inc (Asia)

Portfolio of Investments

Net current assets

Total net assets

Redeemable participating shares in issue
HSBC Asian AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class
HSBC Asian AdvantEdge Fund Euro Class
Net asset value per share

HSBC Asian AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class
HSBC Asian AdvantEdge Fund Euro Class
Total Net Asset Value

HSBC Asian AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class (US$'000)
HSBC Asian AdvantEdge Fund Euro Class (EUR ‘000)

*Listed securities comprise 42.11% of net assets (2008: 53.19%)

Portfolio Classification

Securities with an official stock exchange listing
Unlisted securities
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Holding Market value % of total

USD$'000 net assets
5,382 7,408 15.76%
1 0 0.00%
45,353 8,067 17.16%
6,248 6,634 14.11%
38,700 3,752 7.98%
92 891 1.90%
16,413 2,774 5.90%
3,866 4,659 9.91%
5,953 5,134 10.92%
130 86 0.18%
361 230 0.49%
759 500 1.06%
6,499 4,275 9.09%
4 3 0.01%
44,413 94.47%
2,596 5.53%
47,009 100.00%
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
253,142.60 529,954.02
9,824.13 132,644.31
US$180.33 US$190.37
EUR98.38 EUR106.37
45,647 100,887
966 14,108

% of Portfolio

44.57%
55.43%
100.00%
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009*
(UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Description Nominal Cost
US$'000
HB Asia Holding Ltd 424 3,535
3,535

Sales

Description Nominal Proceeds
US$'000
Tree Line Asia Fund Class U2 68,668 8,072
Ellerston USD Mutual Fund 85,000 7,556
Highbridge Asia Opportunities 7,035 7,066
Boyer Allan Pacific Class A USD 11,662 6,991
SR Global Fund Class B AsiaS 1 11,034 6,000
CQS Asia Feeder Fund Ltd - Class B 6,248 5,811
WF Asia Fund Limited -Class S Series 1 21,438 5,584
Brevan Howard Fund Ltd USD SHS 27,657 4,736
Optimal Asia Pacific Fund Jan Sub 50,531 4,249
Optimal Asia Pacific Fund USD 50,000 4,202
MBAM Pan-Asian Fund Limited — Class Dollar A 23,956 4,000
Oz Asia Overseas Fund Ltd USD 3,016 3,000
SR Global Fund Class B AsiaS 1 U 5,723 3,000
HB Asia Holding Ltd 332 2,891
WF Asia Fund Ltd Class S 20 27,390 2,081
Arnott Opportunities Oct 1st S 1,509 2,000
Tree Line Asia - Class R, Series 1 7,363 858
Tree Line Asia - Class R, Series 1 7,037 687
PMA Credit Opp US Series 080 589 513
79,297

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceeding 2% of the net
assets of the fund at the start of the period. In any event, at a minimum, the 20 largest purchases and 20 largest
sales must be shown.
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31 2008 31

22,674 1,968 59,770 5,189

6,647 577 5,610 487
118 10 103 9
6, 765 587 5,713 496

(2,605) (226) (6,313) (548)

4,160 361 (600) (52)

26, 834 2,329 59,170 5,137
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2009 31

20009 31 2008 31

(9,386) (815) (2,702) (235)

(1,600) (139) 690 60
247 21 24 2
(104) (9) (34) (3)
(691) (60) (1,166) (101)
(548) (48) (1,176) (102)

(11,534)(1,001) (3,188) (277)

2009 31

20009 31 2008 31

59,170 5,137 39,929 3,466

6,200 538 30, 488 2,647

(27,002)(2,344) (8,059) (700)

(20,802)(1,806) 22,429 1,947

(11,534)(1,001) (3,188) (277)

26, 834 2,329 59,170 5,137
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2009 31

NN
[eoNe)
oo
© 0o
NN
oo
oo
0

31 31

(11,534)(1,001) (3,188) (277)

9,386 815 2,702 235
(76) (7) 58 5
82 7 2 0
(51) (4) (310) (27)

(2,193) (190) (736) (64)

(10,623) (922) (39,920)(3,465)
37,236 3,232 12,275 1,066
26,613 2,310 (27,645)(2,400)

(2,324) (202) 2,604 226

4,921 427 32,843 2,851
(27,002)(2,344) (8,059) (700)
(24,405)(2,119) 27,388 2,378

15 1 (993) (86)
103 9 1,096 95
118 10 103 9
15 1 (993) (86)
2,324 202 (2,604) (226)
2,339 203 (3,597) (312)
(2,501) (217) 1,096 95

16 (162) (14) (2,501) (217)

162/364



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2005 12

163/364



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FRS1 1
2009 7 31 2008 7 31

(9,386) (2,702)
2009 7 31 2008 7 31

(1,600) 690
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2009 7 31 2008 7 31
2 24
245

247 24

2009 7 31 2008 7 31

(596) (839)

(215)

(596) (1,054)

(36) (51)

©)) ©))

(51) (53)

(59) (61)

(691) (1,166)

1999 7 23

2000 3 31
HSBC 2004

HSBC
1.65% 36,572 2008 85,394
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1999 7 23
2000 1 14
HSBC 2004 1 1
HSBC 2008 5
31 HSBC C.l.
0.10% 2,216 2008 5,175
2004 4 30 HSBC
2007 1 1 HSBC
3 Libor 3.5%
10 2008
0
2009 2008
6,000 5,534
610
22

53

15 23

6,647 5,610

2009 2008

118 103

2009 2008

(2,234) (3,513)

13 (280) (2,604)

(37) (85)

2 )

(26) (29)

(54)

(26) (23)

(2,605) (6,313)
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HSBC 1989
600 2008 600
1990
B B HSBC
HSBC
100
2008 8 1
257,442.81 73,006.12 330,448.93
32,227.32 10,383.30 42,610.62
(157,653.01) (39,153.00)  (196,806.01)
2009 7 31
132,017.12 44,236.42 176,253.54
2007 8 1
195,843.04 13,191.99 209,035.03
101,120.35 61,431,04 162,551.39
(39,520.58) (1,616.91) (41,137.49)
2008 7 31

257,442.81 73,006.12 330,448.93
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13
HSBC C.I.
2008 11 2008 12

HSBC

C.I.
HSBC
25%
1

10
HSBC 2008 12 9
HSBC C.l. 22,097,159 2008 11,759,387

24,421,011 2008 9,155,421

280,114 2008 2,603,966 2.07 2008 4.59

103,663 2008 33,620
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2009 7 31

2009 8 28

2009 8 28

2008 7 31

2008 8 29

@)

3,868,000
25,000

8,271,750

5,427,887
35,231

12,948,480
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State Street Boston 22
State Street Boston

22

State Street Boston (54)

(54)
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(b)

(©

2009 7 31

5,463 5,463
26,812 (5,441) 21,371
26,812 22 26,834
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2008 7 31
(69) 12,911 12,842
59,293 (12,965) 46,328
59,224 (54) 59,170
(d)
1.12480 280,114
(e)
2009 7 31
1 15 5
(2,234) (2,234)
(280) (280)
(91) (91)

(2,605) (2,605)
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2008 7 31
1 1-5 5
(3,513) (3,513)
(2,604) (2,604)
(54) (54)
(142) (142)
(6,313) (6,313)
2009 7 31
GLG Emerging Markets Special 97
Marathon Overseas Fund Ltd 246
Thames River Hillside Apex Fund — Class A 1,572
1,915
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2009 7 31 2008 7 31
118 15 103
(280) 2,324 (2,604)
(162) 2,339 (2,501)
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(3)
2009 7 31
%
(2008 :101.10%)
Brevan Howard Emerging Markets (US Dollar) 39,633 5,245 19.55%
GLG Emerging Markets Special 2,000 97 0.36%
GLG Emerging Special Assets 9,552 765 2.85%
Marathon Overseas Fund Ltd 539 246 0.92%
Moore Emerging Fixed Income 2,468 2,588 9.64%
Regent U/V Africa Fund 126,113 12 0.04%
SR Global Emerging G 3 2009 | 236 254 0.95%
SR Global Emerging Markets Class 4,444 5,001 18.64%
Thames River Hillside Apex Fund - Class A 802 1,572 5.86%
Thames Rivers Nevsky - Class A 561 4,583 17.08%
Tudor Global Emerging Markets 446 438 1.63%
Tudor Global Emerging Markets 2,000 1,873 6.98%
22,674 84.50%
4,160 15.50%
26,834 100.00%
2009/7/31 2008/7/31 2007/7/31
132,017.12 257,442.81 195,843.04
44,236.42 73,006.12 13,191.99
160.94 182.94 193.47
89.67 105.98 112.87

( ) 21,246 47,094 37,889
( ) 3,966 7,737 1,489

* 42.52% (2008 : 41.25%)
50.32%
49.68%
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* 2009 7 31 ( )
Brevan Howard Emerging Markets 28,425 3,000
Moore Emerging Fixed Income 2,468 2,523
Thames Rivers Nevsky Class A 254 2,000
SR Global Asia Class B Series 9 2,410 1,461
GLG Emerging Special Assets A 7,888 711
GLG Emerging Special Assets Il 3,314 331
Everest Capital 1 131
10,083
Brevan Howard Emerging 46,919 5,275
GLG Emerging Markets Fund 22,673 4,995
North Of South Class B USD 45,367 3,786
Everest Emerging Markets B Sla 75,934 2,628
SR Global (Asian) Apr 04 Sub U 4,998 2,620
Tudor Global Emerging Markets 2,554 2,500
Strategy Holdings Long Short 17,490 2,194
Thames River Hillside Apex Class-A 1,023 2,091
SR Global Emerging Markets CI-G U 1,944 2,000
Thames Rivers Nevsky Class A 303 2,000
Moore Emerging Markets Apr 04 Sub 1,095 1,887
Moore Emerging Markets Class D 1,023 1,532
SR Global Fund Asia 2,410 1,263
Moore Emerging Markets Fund USD Mutual 173 1,253
Marathon Overseas Fund Class-B USD 4,155 787
Marathon Overseas Fund Ltd USD 3,847 415
Moore Emerging Markets USD Mutual 44 350
Moore Emerging Markets Fund USD 100 149
Everest Capital Frontier USD Mutual 2,435 85
GLG Emerging Markets Special 1,314 73
Everest Capital 1 23
SR Global Fund Class B USD Mutual 28 15
37,921
* 2%

20
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 JULY 2009

Portfolio of investments
Current assets:

Debtors
Cash and bank balances

Less:
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets/(liabilities)

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)

31 July 2009

Notes US$'000

7 6,647
g ___ 118

6,765
9 (2,605)

Us$'000

22,674

4,160

26,834

Ooooooooooooooooooad

31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
59,770
5,610
103
5,713
(6,313)
(600)
59,170

The financial statements on pages 6 to 16 were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management
(Guernsey) Limited, on 11December 2009 and were signed on its behalf by:

P. Wrench
Director

M. Quarrington
Director

The notes on pages 9 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
Notes US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Net losses on investments 2 (9,386) (2,702)
Other (losses)/gains 3 (1,600) 690
Revenue 4 247 24
Finance Costs: interest (104) (34)
Operating expenses 5 (691) (1,166)
Net expenses (548) (1,176)

Net decrease in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares from investment
activities (11,534) (3,188)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the year 59,170 39,929

Movement due to issue and redemption of redeemable
participating shares:

Amounts received/receivable on issues 6,200 30,488
Less: amounts paid/payable on redemptions (27,002) (8,059)
(20,802) 22,429
Net decrease in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares from investment
activities (11,534) (3,188)

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year 26,834 59,170

The Fund has no other recognised gains and losses other than those noted above.

The notes on page 9 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009

1 August 2008 to 1 August 2007 to
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Operating activities
Changes in net assets attributable to the holders of
participating shares (11,534) (3,188)
Adjustments for:
Net realised and unrealised loss on non-derivative
securities 9,386 2,702
Unrealised (gain)/loss on forward contracts (76) 58
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in other debtors 82 2
Decrease in accrued expenses and payables (51) (310)
Cash flow from operating activities (2,193) (736)
Investing activities
Purchase of investments (10,623) (39,920)
Sale of investments 37,236 12,275
Cash flow from investing activities 26,613 (27,645)
Financing activities
Cashflow from debt — (decrease)/increase in loans payable (2,324) 2,604
Proceeds from issue of redeemable shares 4,921 32,843
Payments on redemptions of redeemable shares (27,002) (8,059)
Cash flow from financing activities (24,405) 27,388
Increase/(decrease) in cash for the year 15 (993)
Cash at the beginning of the year 103 1,096
Cash at the end of the year 118 103
Reconciliation of net cashflow to movement in net debt
Note
Increase/(decrease) in cash for the year 15 (993)
Cashflow from changes in debt 2,324 (2,604)
Movement in net debt in the year 2,339 (3,597)
Net Debt at start of the year (2,501) 1,096
Net Debt at end of the year 16 (162) (2,501)

The notes on pages 9 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the Fund's financial statements:

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as adjusted by the
revaluation of investments and foreign exchange forward contracts and in accordance with applicable UK
accounting standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds issued by Investment
Management Association in December 2005.

Investments

Investments in investment funds are valued at the closing net asset value per share for the underlying
investments that the Fund holds, as at 5 pm (Guernsey time) on the Balance Sheet date. Realised and
unrealised surpluses and deficits on investments are included in the Statement of Total Return. Purchases and
sales of the investments are accounted for on a trade date plus one basis.

Revenue

Investment income and deposit interest are included on an accruals basis.
Expenses

Expenses are included on an accruals basis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to US Dollars at the foreign
currency closing exchange rate ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The Fund reports the realised exchange
gain or loss as well as the unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US Dollar denominated
investments in the Statement of Total Return. Any realised exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised
appreciation or depreciation arising from non-US Dollar denominated payables and receivables and on foreign
currency transactions are reflected in the Statement of Total Return.

Foreign currency contracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to
the difference between the contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract unrealised appreciation is
reported as an asset and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liability in the Statement of Net Assets.

Cash Flow Statement

The Fund has prepared a Cash Flow Statement for the first time this year as the exemption under FRS 1
(Revised) no longer applies due to the fact that a substantial level of the Fund’s investments are not deemed as
being highly liquid as disclosed in Note 15 — Liquidity Risk.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arise from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the Statement of
Total Return on an accruals basis.

Shares in issue

Redeemable Participating shares are redeemable at the option of the holder of Redeemable Participating
shares and will be classified as financial liabilities. Distributions of Redeemable Participating shares are
classified as finance costs in the Statement of Total Return.
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (CONTINUED)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Fund’s investment portfolio is carried at fair value.

Gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities held or issued for trading

The net gain/loss on financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the Statement of Total Return.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The functional and presentation currency is US Dollar, because that is the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Fund operates.

NET LOSSES ON INVESTMENTS Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Net losses on non-derivative investments (9,386) (2,702)
OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Other currency (losses)/gains (1,600) 690
REVENUE Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Bank interest 2 24
Other income 245 -
247 24
OPERATING EXPENSES Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Payable to the Manager and its associates:
Management fee (596) (839)
Performance fee - (215)
(596) (1,054)
Payable to the Trustee and its associates:
Trustee fees (36) (51)
Other expenses:
Audit fees (8) (8)
Other sundry expenses (51) (53)
(59) (61)
Total operating expenses (691) (1,166)
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

6 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 23 July 1999, which constituted Republic Uni-Folio, Republic
Management (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Manager of the Fund, dealing with its administrative
affairs. With effect from 31 March 2000, the Manager changed its name to HSBC Republic Management
(Guernsey) Limited. With effect from 1 January 2004, the Manager changed its name to HSBC Management
(Guernsey) Limited. The Manager receives a management fee of 1.65% of the net asset value per annum. The
fee outstanding at the year end was US$36,572 (2008: US$85,394).

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 23 July 1999, which constituted Republic Uni-Folio, Republic National
Bank of New York (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Trustee. With effect from 14 January 2000, the
Trustee changed its name to HSBC Republic Bank (Guernsey) Limited. With effect from 1 January 2004, the
Trustee changed its name to HSBC Private Bank (Guernsey) Limited. With effect 31 May 2008, the Trustee
changed its name to HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited. The Trustee receives a fee of 0.10% of the net asset
value per annum. The fee outstanding at the year end was US$2,216 (2008: US$5,175).

Under the terms of an agreement dated 30 April 2004, the Manager appointed HSBC Republic Investments
Limited as the Investment Advisers of the Fund. With effect 1 January 2007, the Investment Adviser changed
its name to HSBC Alternative Investments Limited. The Manager is entitled to a performance incentive fee of
10% of new “excess” value over the Index (US Dollar 3 Month LIBOR plus 3.5% per annum). The performance
fee outstanding at the year end was US$Nil (2008: US$Nil).

7 DEBTORS 2009 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Amounts paid in advance of securities purchased 6,000 5,534
Amounts receivable on securities sold 610 -
Unrealised gain on forward contracts 22 -
Equalisation due from investments - 53
Prepaid expenses 15 23
6,647 5,610
8 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2009 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Cash and bank balances 118 103

9 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITH IN ONE YEAR
2009 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Amounts received in advance of issuing shares (2,234) (3,513)
Loans Payable (Note 13) (280) (2,604)
Accrued management expenses (37) (85)
Accrued trustee fees (2) (5)
Formation expenses (26) (29)
Unrealised loss on forward contracts - (54)
Other accrued expenses (26) (23)
(2,605) (6,313)

10 TAXATION STATUS

The umbrella fund, HSBC Uni-Folio Fund, is exempt from Guernsey income tax under the Income Tax
(Exempt Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinance 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP 600(2008:
GBP 600).
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

11 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND
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HSBC Emerging AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) is a sub-fund of HSBC Uni-Folio, a unit trust which is
authorised as a Class B Scheme under the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990.

The Fund owns 100% of the shares in HSBC Republic Emerging Markets Hedge Investments Limited (the

Company”), a BVI registered company. The Fund also loaned monies to the Company to fund its investing

activities.

The Company owns the investments listed in Portfolio Statement. The purpose of a Company holding the
investments is to ensure that any withholding tax on distributions from such investments may be reclaimed.

These financial statements include all the assets and liabilities of the Fund and the Company.
12 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES IN ISSUE

Redeemable participating shares in issue at 1

August 2008

Issued on subscriptions
Redemptions

Redeemable participating shares in issue at 31

July 2009

Redeemable participating shares in issue at 1

August 2007

Issued on subscriptions
Redemptions

Redeemable participating shares in issue at 31

July 2008

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Number Number Number

US Dollar Class Euro Class Total
257,442.81 73,006.12 330,448.93
32,227.32 10,383.30 42,610.62
(157,653.01) (39,153.00) (196,806.01)
132,017.12 44,236.42 176,253.54
Number Number Number

US Dollar Class Euro Class Total
195,843.04 13,191.99 209,035.03
101,120.35 61,431.04 162,551.39
(39,520.58) (1,616.91) (41,137.49)
257,442.81 73,006.12 330,448.93

HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited acts as Trustee to the Fund.

The Fund also places money on deposit with the Trustee on a regular basis throughout the year. The interest
rate received is consistent with that received on normal commercial deposits.

The Fund experienced an increased level of redemptions in November 2008 and to a lesser extent in
December 2008. These redemptions were largely met by a combination of available liquidity and utilisation of
credit facilities offered by HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited, which also acts as Trustee for the funds.

However, these levels of redemptions may have caused each of the Funds to exceed its borrowing limit (the “
Borrowing Limit") as set out in the current prospectus of HSBC Uni-Folio:

“The Fund may borrow up to 25% of its Net Asset Value as follows:

i. for a period of up to one month to cover a cash shortfall caused by mismatched settlement dates on
purchase and sale transactions and, for a period of up to three months, to fund redemptions; and
ii. for investment purposes, subject to a maximum of 10% of the Fund s Net Asset Value, to facilitate

additional investment in Investment Funds.”
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — (CONTINUED)
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HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (the “Manager”) determined that this Borrowing Limit be temporarily
suspended for a period of up to three months from the date of the Shareholder Notice issued on 9 December
2008.

HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) provided loans of US$22,097,159 (2008: US$11,759,387) to the Fund during the
year. Loans of US$24,421,011 (2008: US$9,155,421) were repaid. At the year end US$280,114 (2008:
US$2,603,966) was outstanding. Interest was charged at an average floating rate of 2.07% (2008: 4.59%) per
annum. US$103,663 (2008: US$33,620) interest was charged for the period.

14 FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Assets may be denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each share class and certain
currency exposure will be hedged back to the relevant share class currency. Hedging for this purpose may be
by means of forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such contracts or by using such other derivative
instruments as may be available and having the same or similar effect. The Investment Adviser retains the right
to vary the policy on currency hedging at its absolute discretion. All costs of such hedging will be met by the
Holders of the relevant share class only.

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 31 July 2009 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Emerging AdvantEdge Fund — Euro Class:

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Gain
US$'000

28-Aug-09 EUR3,868,000 US$5,427,887 State Street Boston 22
28-Aug-09 EUR25,000 US$35,231 State Street Boston -
22

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 31 July 2008 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Emerging AdvantEdge Fund — Euro Class:

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Loss
US$'000

29-Aug-08 EURS,271,750 US$12,948,480 State Street Boston (54)
(54)

15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The main risks arising from the Fund’s financial instruments are market price, foreign currency, liquidity and
credit risks.

(a) Market risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the
potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The
Investment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in order to minimise the risk associated with
particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund’s investment objective.

Market risk embodies the potential for both loss and gains and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk. The profitability of the Fund’s investment programme depends to a great extent on correct
assessments of the future course of price movements of securities and equities and other investments. There
can be no assurance that the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price movements. The securities
markets have in recent years been characterised by great volatility and unpredictability. With respect to the
investment strategy into which the Investment Adviser has invested the Fund’s assets, there is always some,
and from time to time a significant, degree of market risk.
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (CONTINUED)

Details of the Fund'’s investment portfolio at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the portfolio statement
included on page 17.

(b) Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an
individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the market.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard investment and borrowing restrictions as defined in the
prospectus. The Fund’s investment restrictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Custodian of the Fund
and reviewed quarterly by the Board of Directors. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and
reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come close to restriction levels.

(c) Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than
its functional currency. Consequently the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative
to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse affect on the value of that portion of
the Funds assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than US Dollars.

The Funds currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies
and procedures in place. All currency exposure at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency of the relevant
share class on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund’s overall currency positions and
exposures are monitored on a monthly basis by the Board of Directors.

The Fund also offers redeemable participating shares denominated in Euro exposing the Fund to foreign
currency risk. This risk is mitigated by the Fund entering into foreign exchange contracts as described further in
this note.

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the
foreign currencies at 31 July 2009.

Total
Currency Total Forward FX Net
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Euro - 5,463 5,463
Us Dollar 26,812 (5,441) 21,371
26,812 22 26,834

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the
foreign currencies at 31 July 2008

Total
Currency Total Forward FX Net
uUSs$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
Euro (69) 12,911 12,842
US Dollar 59,293 (12,965) 46,328
59,224 (54) 59,170

(d) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are in investments which neither pay interest nor have a maturity
date. The underlying funds the Fund invests in are exposed to interest rate risk, however the Fund mitigates
this risk by diversifying its investments.

The Fund has borrowed US$280,114 at year end which bears interest at 1.12480%. To minimise interest rate
risk the Fund enters into floating rate loan agreements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (CONTINUED)
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(e) Liquidity risk

The main liability of the Fund is the redemption of any shares that investors wish to sell. The risk is that the
Fund might not be able to liquidate investment positions in order to repay amounts demanded by its
shareholders.

The Fund’s liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Manager in accordance with
policies and procedures in place. It is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds, limited
partnerships or other vehicles that have no liquidity. The Fund’s overall liquidity risks are monitored on a
quarterly basis by the Board of Directors.

Residual Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund'’s financial liabilities at 31 July 2009:
Less than 1 Greater than 5
year 1tob5 years years Total
US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000

Liabilities

Amounts received in advance of issuing shares (2,234) - - (2,234)
Loans payable (280) - - (280)
Accrued expenses (91) - - (91)
Total (2,605) - - (2,605)

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund'’s financial liabilities at 31 July 2008:
Less than 1 Greater than 5
year 1tob5 years years Total
US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 USs$ ‘000 US$ ‘000

Liabilities

Amount received in advance of issuing shares (3,513) - - (3,513)
Loans payable (2,604) - - (2,604)
Unrealised loss on forward contracts (54) - - (54)
Accrued expenses (142) - - (142)
Total (6,313) - - (6,313)

The Fund'’s investment restrictions, as defined in the Prospectus, some of which pertain to the management of
liguidity risk and concentrations thereof are monitored on a monthly basis by the custodian of the Fund. There
are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come
close to restriction levels.

The Manager may limit the number of shares in the Fund which may be redeemed on any dealing day.

At year end the following investee funds had put in place restrictions which limit the Fund’s ability to redeem its
investment holdings:

Market Value at

31 July 2009

US$'000

GLG Emerging Markets Special 97
Marathon Overseas Fund Ltd 246
Thames River Hillside Apex Fund - Class A 1,572
1,915

The Fund has prepared a Cash Flow Statement for the first time this year, as due to the market conditions a
substantial level of the Fund'’s investments are not deemed as being highly liquid.
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (CONTINUED)

(f) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a Counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund will be exposed to a credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement
default. The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with different
counterparties.

Substantially all of the assets and cash of the Fund are held by the Custodian - State Street Custodial Services
(Ireland) Limited. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund'’s rights with respect to
securities held by the Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Company monitors its risk by monitoring the
credit quality of the Custodian of the Fund.

16 ANALYSIS OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT

At 31 July 2009 Cash flow At 31 July 2008

US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000

Cash and bank balances 118 15 103
Loans payable (note 13) (280) 2,324 (2,604)
Net Debt (162) 2,339 (2,501)

17 DISTRIBUTION POLICY
The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend. All income will be “rolled-up”.

18 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR
Due to a merger the Administrator changed from Investors Fund Services (Ireland) Limited to State Street
Fund Services (Ireland) Limited and the Custodian changed from Investors Trust and Custodial Services
(Ireland) Limited to State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited. The Administration and Custodian
agreements were novated on 1 February 2009. The office of Administrator was held throughout the year by
Investors Fund Services (Ireland) Limited/State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited respectively.

19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no significant events affecting the Fund since year end that require amendment to or
disclosure in the financial statements.
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

PORTFOLIO STATEMENT AS AT 31 JULY 2009

Security Description Holding Market value % of total
US$'000 net assets
Mutual Funds
U.S. Dollar (2008: 101.10%)
Brevan Howard Emerging Markets (US Dollar) 39,633 5,245 19.55%
GLG Emerging Markets Special 2,000 97 0.36%
GLG Emerging Special Assets 9,552 765 2.85%
Marathon Overseas Fund Ltd 539 246 0.92%
Moore Emerging Fixed Income 2,468 2,588 9.64%
Regent U/V Africa Fund 126,113 12 0.04%
SR Global Emerging G 3 2009 | 236 254 0.95%
SR Global Emerging Markets Class 4,444 5,001 18.64%
Thames River Hillside Apex Fund - Class A 802 1,572 5.86%
Thames Rivers Nevsky - Class A 561 4,583 17.08%
Tudor Global Emerging Markets 446 438 1.63%
Tudor Global Emerging Markets 2,000 1,873 6.98%
Portfolio of Investments 22,674 84.50%
Net current assets 4,160 15.50%
Total net assets 26,834 100.00%
31 July 2009 31 July 2008 31 July 2007
Redeemable participating shares in issue
HSBC Emerging AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class 132,017.12 257,442.81 195,843.04
HSBC Emerging AdvantEdge Fund EUR Class 44,236.42 73,006.12 13,191.99
Net asset value per share
HSBC Emerging AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class US$160.94 US$182.94 US$193.47
HSBC Emerging AdvantEdge Fund EUR Class EUR89.67 EUR105.98 EUR112.87
HSBC Emerging AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class (US$'000) 21,246 47,094 37,889
HSBC Emerging AdvantEdge Fund EUR Class (EUR’000) 3,966 7,737 1,489

*Listed securities comprise 42.52% of net assets (2008: 41.25%)

Portfolio Classification

Securities with an official stock exchange listing
Unlisted securities
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009*
(UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Description Nominal Cost
uUs$'000
Brevan Howard Emerging Markets 28,425 3,000
Moore Emerging Fixed Income 2,468 2,523
Thames Rivers Nevsky Class A 254 2,000
SR Global Asia Class B Series 9 2,410 1,461
GLG Emerging Special Assets A 7,888 711
GLG Emerging Special Assets Il 3,314 331
Everest Capital 1 131
10,083
Sales
Description Nominal Proceeds
uUs$'000
Brevan Howard Emerging 46,919 5,275
GLG Emerging Markets Fund 22,673 4,995
North Of South Class B USD 45,367 3,786
Everest Emerging Markets B Sla 75,934 2,628
SR Global (Asian) Apr 04 Sub U 4,998 2,620
Tudor Global Emerging Markets 2,554 2,500
Strategy Holdings Long Short 17,490 2,194
Thames River Hillside Apex Class-A 1,023 2,091
SR Global Emerging Markets CI-G U 1,944 2,000
Thames Rivers Nevsky Class A 303 2,000
Moore Emerging Markets Apr 04 Sub 1,095 1,887
Moore Emerging Markets Class D 1,023 1,532
SR Global Fund Asia 2,410 1,263
Moore Emerging Markets Fund USD Mutual 173 1,253
Marathon Overseas Fund Class-B USD 4,155 787
Marathon Overseas Fund Ltd USD 3,847 415
Moore Emerging Markets USD Mutual 44 350
Moore Emerging Markets Fund USD 100 149
Everest Capital Frontier USD Mutual 2,435 85
GLG Emerging Markets Special 1,314 73
Everest Capital 1 23
SR Global Fund Class B USD Mutual 28 15
37,921

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceeding 2% of the net
assets of the fund at the start of the period. In any event, at a minimum, the 20 largest purchases and 20 largest
sales must be shown.
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31

20009 31 2008 31

18,570 2,418 45,776 5,960
811 106 4,638 60 4
106 14 699 91
917 119 5,337 695

(2,933) (382) (12,834)(1,671)

(2,016) (263) (7,497) (976)

16,554 2,155 38,279 4,984

HSBC ( )
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2009 31

20009 31 2008 31

(2,166) (282) (3,790) (493)

722 94 (1,986) (259)
23 3 16 2
(155) (20) (250) (33)
(505) (66) (951) (124)
(637) (83) (1,185) (154)

(2,081) (271) (6,961) (906)

2009 31

20009 31 2008 31

38,279 4,984 60,564 7,886

138 18 17,969 2,340

(19, 782)(2,576)(33,293)(4, 335)

(19, 644)(2,558)(15,324)(1,995)

(2,081) (271) (6,961) (906)

16,554 2,155 38,279 4,984
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2009 31
2008 2007
20009 31 2008 31
(2,081) (271) (6,961) (906)
2,166 282 3,790 493

58 8 (65) (8)

1 0 10 1
(18) (2) (151) (20)
126 16 (3,377) (440)

(4,061) (529) (16,009)(2,085)
32,872 4,280 27,849 3,626
28,811 3,751 11,840 1,542
(10,871)(1,416) 10, 346 1,347
1,123 146 14,937 1,945
(19, 782)(2,576)(33,293)(4,335)
(29,530)(3,845) (8,010) (1,043)
(593) (77) 453 59
699 91 246 32
106 14 699 91
(593) (77) 453 59
10,871 1,416 (10,346)(1,347)
10,278 1,338 (9,893) (1, 288)
(12,024)(1,566) (2,131) (277)
16 (1,746) (227) (12,024)(1,566)
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FRS1 1
2009 7 31 2008 7 31

(2,166) (3,790)
2009 7 31 2008 7 31

722 (1,986)
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2009 7 31 2008 7 31
23 16
2009 7 31 2008 7 31
119
(407) (948)
(407) (829)
(25) (57)
8) 8
4 (6)
(61) (51)
(73) (65)
(505) (951)
1999 7 23
2000 3 31
2004
22,791 2008 56,165
1999 7 23
2000 1 14
2004 1 1
2008 5
C.1.
1,381 2008 3,404
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2004 4 30 HSBC
2007 1 1 HSBC
3 Libor 3.5%
10 2008
0
7
2009 2008
2,000
805 2,576
6 61
1
811 4,638
8
2009 2008
106 699
9
2009 2008
13 (1,852) (12,723)
(1,000) (15)
(23) (56)
(1) )
(31) (28)
(26) 9)
(2,933) (12,834)
10
HSBC 1989

600 2008 600
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12

1990
B B HSBC
HSBC
100
2008 8 1
183,169.26 150,489.21 333,658.47
111.07 1,332.79 1,443.86
(110,861.56) (71,385.65)  (182,247.21)
2009 7 31
72,418.77 80,436.35 152,855.12
2007 8 1
248,144.89 224,833.63 472,978.52
52,232.71 105,747.80 157,980.51
(117,208.34) (180,092.22)  (297,300.56)
2008 7 31

183,169.26

150,489.21

333,658.47
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14

HSBC

C.l.
20,791,756

2008

2008 12,723,284

155,369

2009 7 31

2009 8 28

2009 7 31

2009 8 28

2009 7 31

2008

C.I.

28,098,289

249,829

1,389,601

10,437,000

25%
9,920,761

1,950,000

7,437,575
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HSBC
2008 38,970,020

1,852,289
3.02 2008 5.13
State Street London
State Street London (31)
(31)

(25)




2008 7 31

2008 8 29

2008 7 31

2008 8 29

15

(@)

6,439,580

22,123,000

10,082,000

14,130,414
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State Street Boston (28)
(28)

State Street Boston 61
61
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(b)

(©

2009 7 31
15,687 (6,073) 9,614

892 6,048 6,940

16,579 (25) 16,554
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2008 7 31
31,963 (7,673) 24,290
6,283 7,706 13,989
38,246 33 38,279
(d)
1.215 1,852,289
(e)
2009 7 31
1 15 5
(195) (195)
(1,852) (1,852)
(31) (31)
(50) (50)

(2,128) (2,128)
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2008 7 31

1 1-5 5
(15) (15)
(12,723) (12,723)
(96) (96)
(12,834) (12,834)

2009 7 31

Amber Fund — Class J, Series S 175
Blue Bay High Yield Fund Ltd 1,621
Fortelus Special — Class A, Series F 263
Fortelus Special — Class A, Series P 8
Fortelus Special — Class A, Series P 8
Fortelus Special — Class A, Series P 132
Henderson European Absolute Return Fund 269
MBAM Jandakot Leveraged Fund 40
Trident European Fund Class B 21
2,537
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2009 7 31 2008 7 31
106 (593) 699
(1,852) 10,871 (12,723)
(1,746) 10,278 (12,024)
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(3)
2009 7 31
(2008 :103.10%)
Alphagen Volantis Foreign 16,649 2,275 13.74%
Alphagen Volantis Fund Ltd 1 46 0.28%
Blue Bay High Yield Fund Ltd 13,618 1,621 9.79%
Fortellus Special Opportunities Fund 1,456 1,944 11.74%
Fortelus Special - Class A, Series F 329 263 1.59%
Fortelus Special - Class A, Series P 16 8 0.05%
Fortelus Special - Class A, Series P 8 8 0.05%
Fortelus Special - Class A, Series P 165 132 0.80%
Fortelus Special Situation - Class J, Series 8 836 1,111 6.71%
Henderson European Absolute Return Fund 1,049 269 1.62%
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund 7,920 2,937 17.74%
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Ltd 1 36 0.22%
MBAM Jandakot Leveraged Fund 12,473 1,582 9.56%
Meditor European Hedge Fund 11,193 2,981 18.01%
Polar Capital European Smaller 12,428 2,444 14.76%
Trident European Fund Class B 104 21 0.13%
%
17,678 106.79%
(2008 : 16.49%)
Amber Fund - Class J, Series S 366 175 1.06%
OZ Europe Overseas Fund 1,147 677 4.09%
MBAM Jandakot Leveraged Fund 1,618 40 0.24%
892 5.39%
18,570 112.18%
(2,016) (12.18)%
16,554 100.00%
2009/7/31 2008/7/31
72,418.77 183,169.26
80,436.35 150,489.21
124.57 135.04
131.97 140.49

( ) 9,021 24,734
( ) 10,615 21,142

* 55.48% (2008 : 64.46%)
51.96%
48.04%
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* 2009 7 31 ( )

Alphagen Volantis Fund Ltd 16,649 2,300
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund (EUR) 5,731 2,000
MBMA Jandakot Leveraged F EUR 7,879 1,000
Fortelus Special Class A Sp 5 329 266
Fortelus Special Class A Sp 5e 165 134
Mbam Jandakot Special Invest 1,618 113
Oz European Overseas Fund USD 85 73
Oz Europe Overseas Fund 94 66
Oz European Overseas Fund 57 52
Oz Europe Overseas Fund USD Mu 48 35
Fortelus Special Class A Sp 2 14 10
Fortelus Special Class A Sp 4 8 7
Fortelus Special Class A Sp 3 3 2
Fortellus Special Ops Fund 2 2
Fortelus Special Class A Sp 1 1
6,061

* 2%

20

Lansdowne UK Equity Fund (EUR) 12,261 2,841
Oz European Overseas Fund USD 3,333 2,864
Blue Bay High Yield Fund Ltd 567 68
Polar Capital Conviction Fund 20,000 2,482
Mbma Jandakot Leveraged F EUR 19,505 1,862
Kairos Fund Limited 9,108 2,336
Egerton European Dollar Fund 34,227 2,299
Marshall Wace European 17,492 2,299
MPC Samsara Fund Inc - Class A 23,177 2,259
Lansdowne European Equity Fund 13,508 2,093
Za International Fund Ltd 92,120 2,046
Trident European Fund Class B 7,905 1,984
Eureka (Euro) Fund Ltd Class B 15,894 1,863
Amber Fund Class R3 Ser 05-07 1,214 5
Henderson European Absolute Return Fund 6,259 1,160
ZA International Fund Class B 53,000 1,154
Amber Fund Class J S Initial 647 548
Amber Fund Class R3 Ser 05-08 - 8
Fortellus Special Ops Fund 717 673
Eureka (EUR) Fund Limited 1,356 257
31,101

* 2%

20
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 JULY 2009

31 July 2009 31 July 2008
Notes EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000

Portfolio of investments 18,570 45,776

Current Assets:

Debtors 7 811 4,638
Cash and bank balances 8 106 699
917 5,337
Less:
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 9 (2,933) (12,834)
Net current liabilities (2,016) (7,497)

Net assets attributable to the
holders of redeemable participating shares 16,554 38,279

The financial statements on pages 6 to 17 were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management (Guernsey)
Limited, on 11December 2009 and were signed on its behalf by:

P. Wrench
Director

M. Quarrington
Director

The notes on pages 9 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
Notes EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000
Net losses on investments 2 (2,166) (3,790)
Other gains/(losses) 3 722 (1,986)
Revenue 4 23 16
Finance Costs: interest (155) (250)
Operating expenses 5 (505) (951)
Net expenses (637) (1,185)

Net (decrease) in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares from investment
activities (2,081) (6,961)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 JULY 2009

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the year 38,279 60,564

Movement due to issue and redemption of redeemable
participating shares:

Amounts received/receivable on issues 138 17,969
Less: amounts paid/payable on redemptions (19,782) (33,293)
(19,644) (15,324)
Net (decrease) in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares from investment
activities (2,081) (6,961)

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year 16,554 38,279

The Fund has no other recognised gains and losses other than those noted above.

The notes on pages 9 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009

1 August 2008 to 1 August 2007 to
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
EUR’000 EUR’000
Operating activities
Changes in net assets attributable to the holders of
participating shares (2,081) (6,961)
Adjustment for:
Net realised and unrealised loss on non-derivative
securities 2,166 3,790
Unrealised loss/(gain) on forward contracts 58 (65)
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease in other debtors 1 10
Decrease in accrued expenses and payables (18) (151)
Cash flow from operating activities 126 (3,377)
Investing activities
Purchase of investments (4,061) (16,009)
Sale of investments 32,872 27,849
Cash flow from investing activities 28,811 11,840
Financing activities
Cashflow from debt - (decrease)/increase in loans payable (10,871) 10,346
Proceeds from issue of redeemable shares 1,123 14,937
Payments on redemptions of redeemable shares (19,782) (33,293)
Cash flow from financing activities (29,530) (8,010)
(Decrease)/increase in cash for the year (593) 453
Cash at the beginning of the year 699 246
Cash at the end of the year 106 699
Reconciliation of net cashflow to movement in net debt
Note
(Decrease)/Increase in cash for the year (593) 453
Cash (outflow)/inflow from changes in debt 10,871 (10,346)
Movement in net debt in the year 10,278 (9,893)
Net Debt at start of the year (12,024) (2,131)
Net Debt at end of the year 16 (1,746) (12,024)

The notes on pages 9 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the Fund's financial statements:

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention adjusted by the revaluation
of investments and foreign exchange forward contracts and in accordance with applicable UK accounting
standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds issued by Investment
Management Association in December 2005.

Investments

Investments in investment funds are valued at the closing net asset value per share for the underlying
investments that the Fund holds, as at 5 pm (Guernsey time) on the Balance Sheet date. Realised and
unrealised surpluses and deficits on investments are included in the Statement of Total Return. Purchases and
sales of the investments are accounted for on a trade date plus one basis.

Revenue

Investment income and deposit interest are included on an accruals basis.
Expenses

Expenses are included on an accruals basis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Euro at the foreign currency
closing exchange rate ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The Fund reports the realised exchange gain or loss
as well as the unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-Euro denominated investments in the
Statement of Total Return. Any realised exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised appreciation or
depreciation arising from non-Euro denominated payables and receivables and on foreign currency
transactions are reflected in the Statement of Total Return.

Foreign currency contracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to
the difference between the contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract. Unrealised appreciation is
reported as an asset and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liability in the Balance Sheet.

Cash Flow Statement

The Fund has prepared a Cash Flow Statement for the first time this year as the exemption under FRS 1
(Revised) no longer applies due to the fact that a substantial level of the Fund’s investments are not deemed as
being highly liquid as disclosed in Note 15 — Liquidity Risk.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arise from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the Statement of
Total Return on an accruals basis.

Shares in issue

Redeemable Participating shares are redeemable at the option of the holder of Redeemable Participating
shares and will be classified as financial liabilities.

209/364



EDINETOOOO
0000000000000000000000(E15060)
0o00000000o0ooooood
HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (CONTINUED)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Fund’s investment portfolio is carried at fair value.

Gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities held or issued for trading.

The net gain/loss on financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the Statement of Total Return.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The functional and presentation currency is Euro, because that is the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Fund operates.

NET LOSSES ON INVESTMENTS Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
EUR'000 EUR'000
Net losses on non-derivative investments (2,166) (3,790)
OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
EUR'000 EUR'000
Other currency gains/(losses) 722 (1,986)
REVENUE Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
EUR'000 EUR'000
Bank interest 23 16
OPERATING EXPENSES Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
EUR'000 EUR'000
Payable to the Manager and its associates:
Performance fee - 119
Management fee (407) (948)
(407) (829)
Payable to the Trustee and its associates:
Trustee fees (25) (57)
Other expenses:
Audit fees (8) (8)
Formation fees 4) (6)
Other sundry expenses (61) (51)
(73) (65)
Total operating expenses (505) (951)
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

6 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 23 July 1999, which constituted Republic Uni-Folio, Republic
Management (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Manager of the Fund, dealing with its administrative
affairs. With effect from 31 March 2000, the Manager changed its name to HSBC Republic Management
(Guernsey) Limited. With effect from 1 January 2004, the Manager changed its name to HSBC Management
(Guernsey) Limited. The Manager receives a management fee of 1.65% of the net asset value per annum. The
fee outstanding at the year end was EUR22,791(2008: EUR 56,165).

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 23 July 1999, which constituted Republic Uni-Folio, Republic National
Bank of New York (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Trustee. With effect from 14 January 2000, the
Trustee changed its name to HSBC Republic Bank (Guernsey) Limited. With effect from 1 January 2004, the
Trustee changed its name to HSBC Private Bank (Guernsey) Limited. With effect 31 May 2008, the Trustee
changed its name to HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited. The Trustee receives a fee of 0.10% of the net asset
value per annum. The fee outstanding at the year end was EUR1,381 (2008: EUR3,404).

Under the terms of an agreement dated 30 April 2004, the Manager appointed HSBC Republic Investments
Limited as the Investment Advisers of the Fund. With the effect 1 January 2007 the Investment Advisor
changed its name to HSBC Alternative Investment Limited. The Manager is entitled to a performance incentive
fee of 10% of new “excess” value over the Index (Euro 3 Month LIBOR plus 3.5% per annum). The
performance fee outstanding at the year end was EUR Nil (2008: EUR Nil).

There were no soft commissions during the year.

7 DEBTORS
2009 2008
EUR'000 EUR'000
Amounts paid in advance of securities purchased - 2,000
Amounts receivable on securities sold 805 2,576
Unrealised gain on forward contracts 6 61
Prepaid formation expense - 1
811 4,638
8 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2009 2008
EUR'000 EUR'000
Cash and bank balances 106 699
9 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2009 2008
EUR'000 EUR'000
Loans payable (note 13) (1,852) (12,723)
Amount received in advance of issuing shares (1,000) (15)
Accrued management expenses (23) (56)
Accrued trustee expenses 1) 3)
Unrealised loss on forward contracts (31) (28)
Other accrued expenses (26) (9)
(2,933) (12,834)
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

10 TAXATION STATUS

The umbrella fund, HSBC Uni-Folio Fund, is exempt from Guernsey income tax under the Income Tax (Exempt
Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinance 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP 600 (2008: GBP 600).

11 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) is a sub-fund of HSBC Uni-Folio, a unit trust which is
authorised as a Class B Scheme under the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990.

The Fund owns 100% of the shares in HSBC Republic European AdvantEdge Investments Limited (the “
Company”), a BVI registered company. The Fund also loaned monies to the Company to fund its investing
activities.

The Company owns the investments listed in the Portfolio Statements. The purpose of a Company holding the
investments is to ensure that any withholding tax on distributions from such investments may be reclaimed.

These financial statements include all the assets and liabilities of the Fund and the Company.

12 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES IN ISSUE

Number Number Number
Euro Class  US Dollar Class Total
Redeemable participating shares in issue at 1
August 2008 183,169.26 150,489.21 333,658.47
Issued on subscriptions 111.07 1,332.79 1,443.86
Redemptions (110,861.56) (71,385.65) (182,247.21)
Redeemable participating shares in issue at 31
July 2009 72,418.77 80,436.35 152,855.12
Number Number Number
Euro Class  US Dollar Class Total
Redeemable participating shares in issue at 1
August 2007 248,144.89 224,833.63 472,978.52
Issued on subscriptions 52,232.71 105,747.80 157,980.51
Redemptions (117,208.34) (180,092.22) (297,300.56)

Redeemable participating shares in issue at 31
July 2008 183,169.26 150,489.21 333,658.47

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited acts as Trustee to the fund.

The Fund may borrow up to 25% of its Net Asset Value for a period of up to one month to cover a cash
shortfall caused by mismatched settlement dates on purchase and sale transactions and to finance
redemption. HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited provided loans of EUR9,920,761 (2008: EUR38,970,020) to the
Fund during the year. Loans of EUR20,791,756 (2008: EUR28,098,289) were repaid. At the year end
EUR1,852,289 (2008: EUR12,723,284) inclusive of interest was outstanding. Interest was charged at a rate of
3.02% (2008: 5.13%) per annum. EUR155,369 (2008: EUR249,829) interest was charged during the year.
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
14 FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Assets may be denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each share class and certain
currency exposure will be hedged back to the relevant share class currency. Hedging for this purpose may be
by means of forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such contracts or by using such other derivative
instruments as may be available and having the same or similar effect. The Investment Adviser retains the right
to vary the policy on currency hedging at its absolute discretion. All costs of such hedging will be met by the
Holders of the relevant share class only.

The following forward exchange contract was outstanding at 31 July 2009 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund:

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Gain
EUR’000

28-Aug-09 EUR1,389,601 US$1,950,000 State Street London 6
6

The following forward exchange contract was outstanding at 31 July 2009 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund - US$ Class:

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Loss
EUR’000

28-Aug-09 US$10,437,000 EUR7,437,575 State Street London (31)
(31)

Total unrealised loss on foreign exchange forward contracts at 31 July 2009: (25)

The following forward exchange contract was outstanding at 31 July 2008 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund - US$ Class:

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Loss
EUR’000

29-Aug-08 EURG6,439,580 US$10,082,000 State Street Boston (28)
(28)

The following forward exchange contract was outstanding at 31 July 2008 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund - US$ Class:

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Gain
EUR’000

29-Aug-08 US$22,123,000 EUR14,130,414 State Street Boston 61
61
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The main risks arising from the Fund’s financial instruments are market price, foreign currency, liquidity and
credit risks.

(a) Market risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the
potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The
Investment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in order to minimise the risk associated with
particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund’s investment objective.

Market risk embodies the potential for both loss and gains and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk. The profitability of the Fund’s investment programme depends to a great extent on correct
assessments of the future course of price movements of securities and equities and other investments. There
can be no assurance that the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price movements. The securities
markets have in recent years been characterised by great volatility and unpredictability. With respect to the
investment strategy into which the Investment Adviser has invested the Fund'’s assets, there is always some,
and from time to time a significant, degree of market risk.

Details of the Fund’s investment portfolio at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the portfolio statement
included on page 18.

(b) Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an
individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the market.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard investment and borrowing restrictions as defined in the
prospectus. The Fund’s investment restrictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Custodian of the Fund
and reviewed quarterly by the Board of Directors. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and
reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come close to restriction levels.

(c) Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than
its functional currency. Consequently the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative
to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse affect on the value of that portion of
the Funds assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than Euro.

The Funds currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies
and procedures in place. All currency exposure at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency of the relevant
share class on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund’s overall currency positions and
exposures are monitored on a monthly basis by the Board of Directors.

The Fund also offers redeemable participating shares denominated in USD exposing the Fund to foreign
currency risk. This risk is mitigated by the Fund entering into foreign exchange contracts as described further in
this note.

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the
foreign currencies at 31 July 2009.

Total
Currency Total Forward FX Net
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Euro 15,687 (6,073) 9,614
Us Dollar 892 6,048 6,940
16,579 (25) 16,554
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (CONTINUED)

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the
foreign currencies at 31 July 2008.

Total
Currency Total Forward FX Net
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Euro 31,963 (7,673) 24,290
US Dollar 6,283 7,706 13,989
38,246 33 38,279

(d) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are in investments which neither pay interest nor have a maturity
date. The underlying funds, the Fund invests in are exposed to interest rate risk; however the Fund mitigates
the risk by diversifying its investments.

The Fund has borrowed EUR1,852,289 at year end which bears interest at 1.215%. To minimise interest rate
risk the Fund enters into floating rate loan agreements.

(e) Liquidity risk

The main liability of the Fund is the redemption of any shares that investors wish to sell. The risk is that the
Fund might not be able to liquidate investment positions in order to repay amounts demanded by its
shareholders.

The Fund’s liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Manager in accordance with
policies and procedures in place. It is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds, limited
partnerships or other vehicles that have no liquidity. The Fund’s overall liquidity risks are monitored on a
guarterly basis by the Board of Directors.

Residual Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund’s financial liabilities at 31 July 2009:
Less than 1 Greater than 5
year 1to5 years years Total
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Liabilities

Amount received in advance of securities sold (195) - - (195)
Loans payable (1,852) - - (1,852)
Unrealised loss on forward contracts (31) - - (31)
Accrued expenses (50) - - (50)
Total (2,128) - - (2,128)

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund’s financial liabilities at 31 July 2008:

Less than 1 Greater than 5
year 1to5years years Total
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Liabilities

Amount received in advance of issuing shares (15) - - (15)
Loans payable (12,723) - - (12,723)
Accrued expenses (96) - - (96)
Total (12,834) - - (12,834)
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The Fund'’s investment restrictions, as defined in the prospectus, some of which pertain to the management of
liquidity risk and concentrations thereof are monitored on a monthly basis by the custodian of the Fund. There
are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come

close to restriction levels.

The Manager may limit the number of shares in the Fund which may be redeemed on any dealing day.

At year end the following investee funds had put in place restrictions which limit the Fund'’s ability to redeem its

investment holdings:

Amber Fund - Class J, Series S

Blue Bay High Yield Fund Ltd

Fortelus Special - Class A, Series F
Fortelus Special - Class A, Series P
Fortelus Special - Class A, Series P
Fortelus Special - Class A, Series P
Henderson European Absolute Return Fund
MBAM Jandakot Leveraged Fund

Trident European Fund Class B

Market Value at
31 July 2009
EUR’000

175
1,621
263

8

8

132
269
40

21
2,537

The Fund has prepared a Cash Flow Statement for the first time this year, as due to the market conditions a
substantial level of the Fund’s investments are not deemed as being highly liquid.

(f) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a Counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or

commitment that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund will be exposed to a credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement
default. The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with different

counterparties.

Substantially all of the assets and cash of the Fund are held by the Custodian - State Street Custodial Services
(Ireland) Limited. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund’s rights with respect to
securities held by the Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Company monitors its risk by monitoring the

credit quality of the Custodian of the Fund.

16 ANALYSIS OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT

At 31 July 2009 Cash flow At 31 July 2008

EUR ‘000 EUR ‘000 EUR ‘000

Cash and bank balances 106 (593) 699
Loans payable (1,852) 10,871 (12,723)
Net Debt (1,746) 10,278 (12,024)

216/364



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
17 DISTRIBUTION POLICY
The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend. All income will be “rolled-up”.
18 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

Due to a merger the Administrator changed from Investors Fund Services (Ireland) Limited to State Street
Fund Services (Ireland) Limited and the Custodian changed from Investors Trust and Custodial Services
(Ireland) Limited to State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited. The Administration and Custodian
agreements were novated on 1 February 2009. The office of Administrator was held throughout the year by
Investors Fund Services (Ireland) Limited/State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited respectively.

19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no significant events affecting the Fund since year end that require amendment to or
disclosure in the financial statements.
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

PORTFOLIO STATEMENT AS AT 31 JULY 2009

Security Description

Mutual Funds

Euro (2008: 103.10%)

Alphagen Volantis Foreign

Alphagen Volantis Fund Ltd

Blue Bay High Yield Fund Ltd

Fortellus Special Opportunities Fund
Fortelus Special - Class A, Series F
Fortelus Special - Class A, Series P
Fortelus Special - Class A, Series P
Fortelus Special - Class A, Series P
Fortelus Special Situation - Class J, Series 8
Henderson European Absolute Return Fund
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund

Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Ltd

MBAM Jandakot Leveraged Fund

Meditor European Hedge Fund

Polar Capital European Smaller

Trident European Fund Class B

U.S. Dollar (2008: 16.49%)
Amber Fund - Class J, Series S
OZ Europe Overseas Fund
MBAM Jandakot Leveraged Fund

Portfolio of Investments
Net current liabilities

Total net assets

Redeemable participating shares in issue
HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund Euro Class
HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class

Net asset value per share
HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund Euro Class
HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class

Total Net Asset Value
HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund Euro Class (EUR '000)
HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class (US$ ‘000)

*Listed securities comprise 55.48% of net assets (2008: 64.46%)

Portfolio Classification
Securities with an official stock exchange listing
Unlisted securities
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Holding Market value % of total
EUR'000 net assets
16,649 2,275 13.74%
1 46 0.28%
13,618 1,621 9.79%
1,456 1,944 11.74%
329 263 1.59%
16 8 0.05%
8 8 0.05%
165 132 0.80%
836 1,111 6.71%
1,049 269 1.62%
7,920 2,937 17.74%
1 36 0.22%
12,473 1,582 9.56%
11,193 2,981 18.01%
12,428 2,444 14.76%
104 21 0.13%
%
17,678 106.79%
366 175 1.06%
1,147 677 4.09%
1,618 40 0.24%
892 5.39%
18,570 112.18%
(2,016) (12.18)%
16,554 100.00%
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
72,418.77 183,169.26
80,436.35 150,489.21
EUR124.57 EUR135.04
US$131.97 US$140.49
9,021 24,734
10,615 21,142

% of Portfolio
51.96%
48.04%

100.00%
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INFORMATION ON HSBC UNI-FOLIO

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009* (UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Description Nominal Cost
EUR’000
Alphagen Volantis Fund Ltd 16,649 2,300
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund (EUR) 5,731 2,000
MBMA Jandakot Leveraged F EUR 7,879 1,000
Fortelus Special Class A Sp 5 329 266
Fortelus Special Class A Sp 5e 165 134
Mbam Jandakot Special Invest 1,618 113
Oz European Overseas Fund USD 85 73
Oz Europe Overseas Fund 94 66
Oz European Overseas Fund 57 52
Oz Europe Overseas Fund USD Mu 48 35
Fortelus Special Class A Sp 2 14 10
Fortelus Special Class A Sp 4 8 7
Fortelus Special Class A Sp 3 3 2
Fortellus Special Ops Fund 2 2
Fortelus Special Class A Sp 1 1
6,061

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceeding 2% of the net
assets of the fund at the start of the period. In any event, at a minimum, the 20 largest purchases and 20 largest
sales must be shown.

Sales
Description Nominal Proceeds
EUR’000
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund (EUR) 12,261 2,841
Oz European Overseas Fund USD 3,333 2,864
Blue Bay High Yield Fund Ltd 567 68
Polar Capital Conviction Fund 20,000 2,482
Mbma Jandakot Leveraged F EUR 19,505 1,862
Kairos Fund Limited 9,108 2,336
Egerton European Dollar Fund 34,227 2,299
Marshall Wace European 17,492 2,299
MPC Samsara Fund Inc - Class A 23,177 2,259
Lansdowne European Equity Fund 13,508 2,093
Za International Fund Ltd 92,120 2,046
Trident European Fund Class B 7,905 1,984
Eureka (Euro) Fund Ltd Class B 15,894 1,863
Amber Fund Class R3 Ser 05-07 1,214 5
Henderson European Absolute Return Fund 6,259 1,160
ZA International Fund Class B 53,000 1,154
Amber Fund Class J S Initial 647 548
Amber Fund Class R3 Ser 05-08 - 8
Fortellus Special Ops Fund 717 673
Eureka (EUR) Fund Limited 1,356 257
31,101

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceeding 2% of the net
assets of the fund at the start of the period. In any event, at a minimum, the 20 largest purchases and 20 largest
sales must be shown.
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(1)
2009 31
20009 31
15,293 1,328
446 39
1,277 111
1,723 150
(338) (29)
1,385 120
16,678 1,448
2009 12 11 HSBC
[
P.
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2008 31 2009 31
2008 31
2009 31

(2,828) (245)

(1,130) (98)

3 0
(21) (2)
(397) (34)
(415) (36)

(4,373) (380)

2008 31 2009 31

2008 31
20009 31

30,105 2,613

(9,054) (786)

21,051 1,827

(4,373) (380)

16, 678 1,448
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2005 12

FRS1 1

223/364



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2009 7 31

(2,828)

2009 7 31

(1,130)

2009 7 31
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2009 7 31

4
(319)
(323)

(19)

®)
(10)
(37)
(55)

(397)

1999 7 23
2000 3 31
HSBC 2004
11 HSBC
1.65% 23,133

1999 7 23
2000 1 14
HSBC 2004 1 1
HSBC 2008 5
31 HSBC C.l.
0.10% 1,402
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2004 4 30 HSBC
2007 1 1 HSBC
3 Libor 3.5%
10 4,922

2009

384
24
38

446

2009

1,277

2009

(306)
(23)
)
1)
(3)
(338)

10
HSBC 1989
600
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1990 B
HSBC
HSBC
100
X X
175,729.81 16,398.19 64,924.49 7,187.87
(63,466.37) (21,249.10)
(175,729.81) 150,161.11 (64,924.49) 54,575.92
103,092.93 40,514.69
2008 7 8 9
2008 11 15,016,112
175,729.81 100 150,161.11
5,457,594 64,924.49
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13
HSBC C.I.
1
C.l.
0
14
2009 7 31
2009 8 28 4,151,000
2009 8 28 13,776
15

(@)

25%
6,445,851

5,825,015
19,414
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HSBC
6,445,851
2.77 21,096
State Street London 24
State Street London 0
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(b)

(©

2009 7 31

5,869 5,869
16,654 (5,845) 10,809
16,654 24 16,678
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(d)

2.77 6,445,851

()

2009 7 31
1 1-5 5

(306) (306)

(32) (32)

(338) (338)
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Genus Dynamic Gold Side
RAB Energy Fund Ltd NOV RE

2009 2 1
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2009 7 31

342

252
594




(3)

2009 7 31

Brocade Fund Class 1

Clive Fund Class A

Fortress Commodities RST
Genus Dynamic Gold Side
Martin Currie Global RESC
Oceanic Hedge Fund GSY
Paulson Advantage Ltd
Paulson Advantage Ltd
RAB Energy Fund Ltd NOV RE
RAB Global Mining Class B
Sinopia Multi Index FD El

* 40.97%
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9,644 1,206 7.23%
22,119 2,855 17.12%
1 2,996 17.97%
2,395 342 2.05%
87,055 1,672 10.03%
974 2,882 17.28%
1 15 0.09%
1,977 704 4.22%
2,628 252 1.51%
13,123 1,136 6.81%
145 1,233 7.39%
15,293 91.70%
1,385 8.30%
16,678 100.00%
2009/7/31
40,514.69
103,092.93

104.13

104.13
4,219
10,734
44.68%
55.32%

100.00%
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* 2009 7 31 ( )

Fortress Commodities Rest. Cl 1 4,800
Oceanic Hedge Fund - GSY 1,778 4,545
Clive Fund Class A 40,155 3,950
Blackrock Agr. Class | 30,468 3,634
Brocade Fund Class B1 USD 21,857 2,500
Genus Dynamic Gold Class A 7,249 2,500
Rab Energy Class F 10,977 2,200
Martin Currie Global Resources 87,056 1,750
Rab Energy Fund Ltd Nov Redemptions 13,425 1,342
Rab Global Mining Class B 13,123 1,300
Dorset Energy Series B 27,031 1,200
Sinopia Multi Index Fd Ei CI1 145 1,000
Paulson Advantage Ltd Class A 1,977 750
Genus Dynamic Gold Side Pocket 2,395 357
Blackrock Equalisation 1 66

31,894
* 2%

20

Oceanic Hedge Fund Gsy 804 2,247
Blackrock Agr Cl 1 30,468 1,989
Clive Fund CI A 18,035 1,939
Fortress Commodities Rest Cl 0 1,500
Brocade Fund Cl 1 USD 12,213 1,440
Rab Energy Class F 10,977 1,342
Genus Dynamic Gold Class A 7,249 1,158
Rab Energy Fund Ltd Nov Redemptions 10,797 1,029
Dorset Energy Series B 27,031 679
Fortress Commodities Resort 0 450

13,773
* 2%

20
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HSBC REAL ADVANTEDGE FUND

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 JULY 2009

Portfolio of investments
Current Assets:

Debtors
Cash and bank balances

Less:
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares

Note
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31 July 2009

USs$'000 Us$'000

15,293
446
1,277
1,723
(338)

1,385

16,678

The financial statements on pages 6 to 14 were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management

(Guernsey) Limited, on 11 December 2009 and were signed on its behalf by:

P. Wrench
Director

M. Quarrington
Director

The notes on pages 8 to 14 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC REAL ADVANTEDGE FUND

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE PERIOD FROM 31 JULY 2008 TO 31 JULY 2009

Period from 31July 2008 to

31 July 2009

Notes US$'000 US$'000
Net losses on investments 2 (2,828)
Other losses 3 (1,130)
Revenue 4 3
Finance Costs: Interest (21)
Operating expenses 5 (397)
Net expenses (415)
Net decrease in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares from investment
activities (4,373)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE PERIOD FROM 31 JULY 2008 TO 31 JULY 2009

Period from 31July 2008 to
31 July 2009

US$'000 US$'000
Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the period -
Movement due to issue and redemption of
redeemable participating shares
Amounts received/receivable on issues 30,105
Less: amounts paid/payable on redemptions (9,054)

21,051

Net decrease in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares from investment
activities (4,373)
Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the period 16,678

The Fund has no other recognised gains and losses other than those noted above.

The notes on pages 8 to 14 form an integral part of these financial statements
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HSBC REAL ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the Fund's financial statements:

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention adjusted by the revaluation
of investments and foreign exchange forward contracts and in accordance with applicable UK accounting
standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds issued by Investment
Management Association in December 2005.

Investments

Investments in investment funds are valued at the closing net asset value per share for the underlying
investments that the Fund holds, as at 5 pm (Guernsey time) on the Balance Sheet date. Realised and
unrealised surpluses and deficits on investments are included in the Statement of Total Return. Purchases and
sales of the investments are accounted for on a trade date plus one basis.

Revenue

Investment income and deposit interest are included on an accruals basis.
Expenses

Expenses are included on an accruals basis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to US Dollar at the foreign
currency closing exchange rate ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The Fund reports the realised exchange gain
or loss as well as unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US Dollar denominated
investments in the Statement of Total Return. Any realised exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised
appreciation or depreciation arising from non-US Dollar denominated payables and receivables and on foreign
currency transactions are reflected in the Statement of Total Return.

Foreign currency contracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to
the difference between the contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract. Unrealised appreciation is
reported as an asset and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liability in the Statement of Net Assets.

Cash Flow Statement

Under FRS 1 (Revised) the company is exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow statement as it
complies with the conditions for open ended investment funds.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arise from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the Statement of
Total Return on an accruals basis.

Shares in issue

Redeemable Participating shares are redeemable at the option of the holder of Redeemable Participating
shares and will be classified as financial liabilities.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Fund’s investment portfolio is carried at fair value.
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HSBC REAL ADVANTEDGE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (CONTINUED)

Gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities held or issued for trading

The net gain/loss on financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the Statement of Total Return.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The functional and presentation currency is US Dollar, because that is the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Fund operates.

NET LOSSES ON INVESTMENTS

Net losses on non-derivative investments

OTHER LOSSES

Other currency losses

Period ended
31 July 2009
US$'000

(2,828)
Period ended
31 July 2009

US$'000

(1,130)

REVENUE Period ended
31 July 2009

US$'000

Bank interest 1
Other income 2
3

OPERATING EXPENSES

Period ended

31 July 2009
US$'000
Payable to the Manager and its associates:
Investment adviser fee 4)
Management fee (319)
(323)
Payable to the Trustee and its associates:
Trustee fees (19)
Other expenses:
Audit fees (8)
Formation fees (10)
Other sundry expenses (37)
(55)
Total operating expenses (397)
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HSBC REAL ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
6 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 23 July 1999, which constituted Republic Uni-Folio, Republic
Management (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Manager of the Fund, dealing with its administrative
affairs. With effect from 31 March 2000, the Manager changed its name to HSBC Republic Management
(Guernsey) Limited. With effect from 1 January 2004, the Manager changed its name to HSBC Management
(Guernsey) Limited. The Manager receives a management fee of 1.65% of the net asset value per annum. The
fee outstanding at the period end was US$23,133.

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 23 July 1999, which constituted Republic Uni-Folio, Republic National
Bank of New York (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Trustee. With effect from 14 January 2000, the
Trustee changed its name to HSBC Republic Bank (Guernsey) Limited. With effect from 1 January 2004, the
Trustee changed its name to HSBC Private Bank (Guernsey) Limited. With effect 31 May 2008, the Trustee
changed its name to HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited. The Trustee receives a fee of 0.10% of the net asset
value per annum. The fee outstanding at the period end was US$1,402.

Under the terms of an agreement dated 30 April 2004, the Manager appointed HSBC Republic Investments
Limited as the Investment Advisers of the Fund. With the effect 1 January 2007 the Investment Advisor
changed its name to HSBC Alternative Investments Limited. The Manager is entitled to a performance incentive
fee of 10% of new “excess” value over the Index (US Dollar 3 Month LIBOR plus 3.5% per annum). The
performance fee outstanding at the period end was US$4,922.

There were no soft commissions during the period.

7 DEBTORS
2009
US$'000
Amounts receivable on securities sold 384
Unrealised gain on forward contracts 24
Prepaid formation expense 38
446
8 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2009
US$'000
Cash and bank balances 1,277
9 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2009
US$'000
Amount received in advance of issuing shares (306)
Accrued management expenses (23)
Accrued performance fee (5)
Accrued trustee expenses Q)
Other accrued expenses 3)
(338)
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The umbrella fund, HSBC Uni-Folio Fund, is exempt from Guernsey income tax under the Income Tax (Exempt
Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinance 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP 600.

11 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC Real AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) is a sub-fund of HSBC Uni-Folio Fund, a unit trust which is
authorised as a Class B Scheme under the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990.

The Fund owns 100% of the shares in HSBC Republic Real AdvantEdge Investments Limited (the “Company”),
a BVI registered company. The Fund also loaned monies to the Company to fund its investing activities.

The Company owns the investments listed in the Portfolio Statements. The purpose of a Company holding the
investments is to ensure that any withholding tax on distributions from such investments may be reclaimed.

These financial statements include all the assets and liabilities of the Fund and the Company.

12 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES IN ISSUE

Number Number Number Number
US Dollar X UsS Dollar
Class Class  Euro X Class Euro Class
Redeemable participating shares in issue at
beginning of period - - - -
Issued on subscriptions 175,729.81 16,398.19 64,924.49 7,187.87
Redemptions - (63,466.37) - (21,249.10)
Conversion of shares (175,729.81) 150,161.11 (64,924.49) 54,575.92
Redeemable participating shares in issue at
end of period - 103,092.93 - 40,514.69

In accordance with the Prospectus, shares issued in July, August, and September 2008 were issued through X
Class (US Dollar) and X Class (Euro) share class (the “X Classes”). 175,729.81 US Dollar X Class shares
valued at US$15,016,112 were converted into 150,161.11 US Dollar Class shares at US$100 per share in
November 2008. 64,924.49 Euro X Class shares valued at€5,457,594 were converted into 54,575.92 Euro
Class shares at €100 per share in November 2008.

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited acts as Trustee to the fund.

The Fund may borrow up to 25% of its Net Asset Value for a period of up to one month to cover a cash
shortfall caused by mismatched settlement dates on purchase and sale transactions and to finance
redemption. HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited provided loans of US$6,445,851 to the Fund during the period.
Loans of US$6,445,851 were repaid. At the period end US$Nil inclusive of interest was outstanding. Interest
was charged at an average floating rate of 2.77% per annum. US$21,096 interest was charged during the
period.

14 FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 31 July 2009 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Real AdvantEdge Fund

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Gain
US$'000

28-Aug-09 EUR4,151,000 US$5,825,015 State Street London 24
28-Aug-09 EUR13,776 US$19,414 State Street London 0
24
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The main risks arising from the Fund'’s financial instruments are market price, foreign currency, liquidity and
credit risks.

(a) Market risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the
potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The
Investment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in order to minimise the risk associated with
particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund’s investment objective.

Market risk embodies the potential for both loss and gains and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk. The profitability of the Fund’s investment programme depends to a great extent on correct
assessments of the future course of price movements of securities and equities and other investments. There
can be no assurance that the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price movements. The securities
markets have in recent years been characterised by great volatility and unpredictability. With respect to the
investment strategy into which the Investment Adviser has invested the Fund’s assets, there is always some,
and from time to time a significant, degree of market risk.

Details of the Fund’s investment portfolio at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the portfolio statement
included on page 15.

(b) Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual

investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the market.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard investment and borrowing restrictions as defined in the
prospectus. The Fund’s investment restrictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Custodian of the Fund
and reviewed quarterly by the Board of Directors. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and
reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come close to restriction levels.

(c) Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than
its functional currency. Consequently the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative
to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse affect on the value of that portion of
the Funds assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than US Dollars.

The Funds currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies
and procedures in place. All currency exposure at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency of the relevant
share class on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund’s overall currency positions and
exposures are monitored on a monthly basis by the Board of Directors.

The Fund also offers redeemable participating shares denominated in Euro exposing the Fund to foreign
currency risk. This risk is mitigated by the Fund entering into foreign exchange contracts as described further in
this note.

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the
foreign currencies at 31 July 2009.

Total
Currency Total Forward FX Net
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Euro - 5,869 5,869
US Dollar 16,654 (5,845) 10,809
16,654 24 16,678
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(d) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are in investments which neither pay interest nor have a maturity
date.

The underlying funds the Fund invests in are exposed to interest rate risk, however the Fund mitigates this risk
by diversifying its investments.

The fund borrowed US$6,445,851 during the year at an average floating rate of 2.77% per annum, which was
fully repaid by the end of the year. To minimise interest rate risk the fund enters into floating rate loan
agreements.

Other Assets and Liabilities bear no interest rate risk except for cash and bank balances which are subject to
the variable interest rate.

(e) Liquidity risk

The Fund’s assets comprise mainly of realisable securities, which can be readily sold. The main liability of the
Fund is the redemption of any shares that investors wish to sell. The risk is that the Fund might not be able to
liquidate investments positions in order to repay amounts demanded by its shareholders.

The Fund aims to invest only in marketable investments in order to meet shareholders demands.

Residual Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund’s financial liabilities at 31 July 2009:

Less than 1 Greater than 5
year 1to5 years years Total
US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000
Liabilities
Payable for investments purchased
Amount received in advance of issuing shares (306) - - (306)
Accrued expenses (32) - - (32)
Total (338) - - (338)

The Fund’s investment restrictions, as defined in the prospectus, some of which pertain to the management of
liquidity risk and concentrations thereof are monitored on a monthly basis by the custodian of the Fund. There
are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come
close to restriction levels.

The Manager may limit the number of shares in the Fund which may be redeemed on any dealing day.

At year end the following investee funds had put in place restrictions which limit the Fund’s ability to redeem its
investment holdings:

Market Value at

31 July 2009

US$'000

Genus Dynamic Gold Side 342
RAB Energy Fund Ltd NOV RE 252
594
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (CONTINUED)

(f) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a Counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund will be exposed to a credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement
default. The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with different
counterpatrties.

Substantially all of the assets and cash of the Fund are held by the Custodian - State Street Custodial Services
(Ireland) Limited. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund’s rights with respect to

securities held by the Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Company monitors its risk by monitoring the
credit quality of the Custodian of the Fund.

16 DISTRIBUTION POLICY
The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend. All income will be “rolled-up”.

17 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE PERIOD
Due to a merger the Administrator changed from Investors Fund Services (Ireland) Limited to State Street
Fund Services (Ireland) Limited and the Custodian changed from Investors Trust and Custodial Services
(Ireland) Limited to State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited. The Administration and Custodian
agreements were novated on 1 February 2009. The office of Administrator was held throughout the period by
Investors Fund Services (Ireland) Limited/State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited respectively.

18 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no significant events affecting the Fund since period end that require amendment to or
disclosure in the financial statements.
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PORTFOLIO STATEMENT AS AT 31 JULY 2009

Security Description Holding Market value % of total
US$'000 net assets

Mutual Funds*

US Dollar

Brocade Fund Class 1 9,644 1,206 7.23%
Clive Fund Class A 22,119 2,855 17.12%
Fortress Commodities RST 1 2,996 17.97%
Genus Dynamic Gold Side 2,395 342 2.05%
Martin Currie Global RESC 87,055 1,672 10.03%
Oceanic Hedge Fund GSY 974 2,882 17.28%
Paulson Advantage Ltd 1 15 0.09%
Paulson Advantage Ltd 1,977 704 4.22%
RAB Energy Fund Ltd NOV RE 2,628 252 1.51%
RAB Global Mining Class B 13,123 1,136 6.81%
Sinopia Multi Index FD EI 145 1,233 7.39%
Portfolio of investments 15,293 91.70%
Net current assets 1,385 8.30%
Total net assets 16,678 100.00%

31 July 2009
Redeemable participating shares in issue
HSBC Real AdvantEdge Fund Euro Class 40,514.69
HSBC Real AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class 103,092.93
Net asset value per share
HSBC Real AdvantEdge Fund Euro Class EUR104.13
HSBC Real AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class US$104.13
Total Net Asset Value
HSBC Real AdvantEdge Fund Euro Class (EUR '000) EURA4,219
HSBC Real AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class (US$ ‘000) US$10,734
*Listed securities comprise 40.97% of net assets
Portfolio Classification % of Portfolio
Securities with an official stock exchange listing 44.68%
Unlisted securities 55.32%

100.00%
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 JULY 2009* (UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Description Nominal Cost
US$'000
Fortress Commodities Rest. Cl 1 4,800
Oceanic Hedge Fund - GSY 1,778 4,545
Clive Fund Class A 40,155 3,950
Blackrock Agr. Class | 30,468 3,634
Brocade Fund Class B1 USD 21,857 2,500
Genus Dynamic Gold Class A 7,249 2,500
Rab Energy Class F 10,977 2,200
Martin Currie Global Resources 87,056 1,750
Rab Energy Fund Ltd Nov Redemptions 13,425 1,342
Rab Global Mining Class B 13,123 1,300
Dorset Energy Series B 27,031 1,200
Sinopia Multi Index Fd Ei CI1 145 1,000
Paulson Advantage Ltd Class A 1,977 750
Genus Dynamic Gold Side Pocket 2,395 357
Blackrock Equalisation 1 66
31,894

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceeding 2% of the net
assets of the fund at the start of the period. In any event, at a minimum, the 20 largest purchases and 20 largest
sales must be shown.

Sales
Description Nominal Proceeds
US$'000
Oceanic Hedge Fund Gsy 804 2,247
Blackrock Agr Cl 1 30,468 1,989
Clive Fund CI A 18,035 1,939
Fortress Commodities Rest Cl 0 1,500
Brocade Fund Cl 1 USD 12,213 1,440
Rab Energy Class F 10,977 1,342
Genus Dynamic Gold Class A 7,249 1,158
Rab Energy Fund Ltd Nov Redemptions 10,797 1,029
Dorset Energy Series B 27,031 679
Fortress Commodities Resort 0 450
13,773

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceeding 2% of the net
assets of the fund at the start of the period. In any event, at a minimum, the 20 largest purchases and 20 largest
sales must be shown.
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2009 31

20009 31 2008 31

291,323 25,290 270,032 23,441

784 68 50,044 4,344
4,603 400 6, 295 546
5,387 468 56, 339 4,891

(4,648) (403) (35,485)(3,080)

739 6 4 20, 854 1,810

292,062 25,354 290,886 25, 252

2009 12 11 HSBC ( )
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(2)

2009 31
20009 31 2008 31
5,923 514 23,944 2,079
() (13,479)(1,170) 665 58
25 2 6 2 5
(128) (11) (246) (21)

(6,677) (580) (4,757) (413)

(6,780) (589) (4,941) (429)

() (14,336)(1,245) 19,668 1,707

2009 31

20009 31 2008 31

290,886 25,252 108,755 9,441

151,796 13,177 188,928 16, 401

(136,284011,831) 26, 465)(2,297)

15,512 1,347 162,463 14,103

(14,336)(1,245) 19,668 1,707

292,062 25,354 290,886 25, 252
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2009 7 31 2008 7 31

(4,750) (2,619)

(1,535) (1,944)

(6,285) (4,563)

(290) (159)

C)) 8

(18) (15)

(76) (12)

(102) (35)

(6,677) (4,757)

1999 7 23
2000 3 31
HSBC 2004
11 HSBC
1.65% 406,522 2008 418,344
1999 7 23
2000 1 14
HSBC 2004 1 1
HSBC 2008 5
31 HSBC C.l.

0.10% 24,907 2008 25,353
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2004 4 30 HSBC
2007 1 1 HSBC
3 Libor 3.5%
10 0 2008
1,114,768
.
2009 2008
- 50,000
739 -
45 44
784 50,044
8
2009 2008
4,603 6,295
9
2009 2008
(4,170) (33,613)
(35) (310)
(407) (418)
- (1,115)
(25) (25)
(11) 4)
(4,648) (35,485)
10
HSBC 1989
600 2008 600
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12

2008

2009

2007

2008

31

31

1,276,476.98
633,900.69

225,441.71
179,745.99

(627,124.23)  (158,221.73)
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1990
HSBC
HSBC
100
216,889.45 - 1,718,808.14
81,149.26  70,000.00 964,795.94
(61,263.10) - (846,609.06)

1,283,253.44  246,965.97 236,775.61 70,000.00  1,836,995.02
525,969.58 19,000.86 178,157.15 723,127.59
876,074.09 219,939.39 67,233.31 1,163,246.79
(125,566.69) (13,498.54) (28,501.01) (167,566.24)
1,276,476.98 225,441.71 216,889.45 1,718,808.14

252/364



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

13
HSBC C.I.
1 25% HSBC
C.l. 54,102,394 2008 41,272,631
54,102,394 2008 47,062,289 0 2008
0 2.79 2008 4.88 127,540
2008 246,117
14

2009 7 31
2009 8 28 32,567,000 45,700,620 State Street Boston 189
2009 8 28 2,022,655 2,850,387 State Street Boston -
189

2009 7 31
2009 8 28 32,903,000 53,865,501 State Street Boston 550

2009 8 28 453,326 749,807 State Street Boston -
550
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2009 7 31

2009 8 28

2008 7 31

2008 8 29

2008 7 31

2008 8 29

(@)

666,038,000

32,082,185

31,955,397

7,000,904

50,217,751

63,286,512
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2009 7 31
- 55,165 55,165
] 48,740 48,740
- 6,966 6,966
291,358 (110,167) 181,191
291,358 704 292,062
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2008 7 31
291,500 (113,681) 177,869
(147) 50,074 49,927
(207) 63,297 63,090
291,146 (310) 290,386

(d)

2.79 54,102,394

(€)
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2009 7 31
1 1-5
(4,170) (4,170)
(35) (35)
(443) (443)
(4,648) (4,648)
2008 7 31
1 1-5
(33,613) (33,613)
(310) (310)
(1,562) (1,562)
(35,485) (35,485)
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(3)
2009 7 31
(2008 : 92.83%)
AHL Core Advanced 15,749,271.00 19,860 6.80%
Bluetrend Fund Ltd - USD - Class A 18,373.77 4,454 1.53%
Bluetrend Fund Ltd - USD - Class B 14,934.97 3,442 1.18%
Bluetrend Fund Ltd - Class B 181,990.34 41,943 14.36%
Boronia Diversified Fund USD 25,481.00 44,026 15.07%
Crabel Fund - Class A Series LXXIV 10,000.00 9,329 3.19%
Crabel Fund - Class A, Series XIII 300.00 449 0.15%
Crabel Fund Ltd CI-A S-1 Usd M 305.68 1,353 0.46%
Crabel Furures Fund Mar 08 USD 5,000.00 4,898 1.68%
Crabel Futures Fund - Series XLIV USD 1,600.00 2,345 0.80%
Crabel Futures Fund Apr 08 USD 5,000.00 4,743 1.62%
Crabel Futures Fund May 08 USD 2,500.00 2,392 0.82%
Crabel Futures Fund USD Mutual 260.00 392 0.13%
Crabel Futures Fund USD Mutual 750.00 1,034 0.35%
Crabel Futures Fund USD Mutual 1,250.00 1,664 0.57%
Crabel Futures Fund USD Mutual 3,160.00 4,876 1.67%
Crabel Futures Fund XLVI USD 6,590.00 9,127 3.13%
Crabel Futures XLV USD Mutual 1,080.00 1,540 0.53%
Crabel Futures Series XXXVII USD Mutual 441.98 663 0.23%
Discus Fund USD Mutual Fund 11,075.83 - 0.00%
Discus Feeder Limited B USD 36,843.34 43,878 15.02%
GSA Capital Futures Fund Limited 5,472.10 543 0.19%
Tulip Trend Fund USD Mutual Fund 11,752.47 39,722 13.60%
Winton Futures Lead Series USD 72,436.20 48,650 16.66%
291,323 99.74%
739 0.26%
292,062 100.00%
2009/7/31 2008/7/31
1,283,253.44 1,276,476.98
246,965.97 225,441.71
236,775.61 216,889.45
70,000.00 -
144.34 145.19
131.30 131.69
138.41 137.85
9,505.75 -
185,216 185,328
32,425 29,688
32,771 29,897
665,402 -

* 38.48% (2008  : 32.36%)
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38.58%
61.42%
100.00%




* 2009 7 31

Discus Feeder Limited B USD
GSA Capital Futures Fund Ltd
AHL Core Advanced

Winton Futures Lead Series USD
Crabel Fund Class A LXXIV
Winton Futures Aug Sub
Boronia Diversified Fund

Tulip Trend Fund

Bluetrend Class A Gsy
Bluetrend Class B Gsy

Winton Evolution Fund

GSA Capital Futures FD Limited

Renaissance Institutional Futures
GSA Capital Future Funds

Winton Evolution Fund

Tulip Trend Fund

Winton Futures Aug Sub

Boronia Diversified Fund USD M
Tulip Trend Fund USD Mutual Fund
Boronia Diversified Fund

Winton Evolution Fund USD Mutual
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)
36,843 40,000
203,222 25,000
15,749,271 20,000
14,505 10,637
10,000 10,000
100,000 10,000
2,856 5,000
1,768 5,000
18,374 4,298
14,935 3,333
25,698 2,525
5,472 548
136,341
2 30,001
203,222 20,774
13,855 17,126
4,355 15,000
100,000 10,637
5,918 10,000
2,628 10,000
2,701 5,000
25,698 2,435
120,973

20



HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 JULY 2009

Portfolio of investments
Current assets

Debtors
Cash and bank balances

Less:
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares
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31 July 2009

Notes US$'000

7 784
8 4,603

5,387
9 (4,648)

US$'000

291,323

739

292,062

Ooooooooooooooooooad

31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000

270,032
50,044
6,295
56,339
(35,485)

20,854

290,886

The financial statements on pages 6 to 15 were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management
(Guernsey) Limited, on 11December 2009 and were signed on its behalf by:

P. Wrench
Director

M. Quarrington
Director

The notes on pages 8 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
Notes US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Net gains on investments 2 5,923 23,944
Other (losses)/gains 3 (13,479) 665
Revenue 4 25 62
Finance Costs: interest (128) (246)
Operating expenses 5 (6,677) (4,757)
Net expenses (6,780) (4,941)
Net (decrease)/ increase in net assets attributable to the
holders of redeemable participating shares from
investment activities (14,336) 19,668

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the year 290,886 108,755

Movement due to issue and redemption of redeemable
participating shares:

Amounts received/receivable on issues 151,796 188,928
Less: amounts paid/payable on redemptions (136,284) (26,465)
15,512 162,463
Net (decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to the
holders of redeemable participating shares from
investment activities (14,336) 19,668

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year 292,062 290,886

The Fund has no other recognised gains and losses other than those noted above.

The notes on page 8 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the Fund's financial statements:

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as adjusted by the
revaluation of investments and foreign exchange forward contracts and in accordance with applicable UK
accounting standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds issued by the
Investment Management Association in December 2005.

Investments

Investments in investment funds are valued at the closing net asset value per share for the underlying
investments that the Fund holds, as at 5 pm (Guernsey time) on the Balance Sheet date. Realised and
unrealised surpluses and deficits on investments are included in the Statement of Total Return. Purchases and
sales of the investments are accounted for on a trade date plus one basis.

Revenue

Investment income and deposit interest are included on an accruals basis.
Expenses

Expenses are included on an accruals basis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to US dollars at the foreign
currency closing exchange rate ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The Fund reports the realised exchange gain
or loss as well as the unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US Dollar denominated
investments in the Statement of Total Return. Any realised exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised
appreciation or depreciation arising from non-US Dollar denominated payables and receivables and on foreign
currency transactions are reflected in the Statement of Total Return.

Foreign currency contracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to
the difference between the contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract. Unrealised appreciation is
reported as an asset and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liability in the Statement of Net Assets.

Cash Flow Statement

Under Financial Reporting Standard No.1 the Fund is exempt from the requirement to prepare a cashflow
statement as it complies with the conditions for open ended investment funds.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arise from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the Statement of
Total Return on an accruals basis.

Shares in issue

Redeemable Participating shares are redeemable at the option of the holder of Redeemable Participating
shares and will be classified as financial liabilities.
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (CONTINUED)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Fund’s investment portfolio is carried at fair value.

Gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities held or issued for trading

The net gain/loss on financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the Statement of Total Return.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The functional and presentation currency is US Dollar, because that is the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Fund operates.

2 NET GAINS ON INVESTMENTS Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Net gains on non-derivative investments 5,923 23,944
3 OTHER (LOSSES)/ GAINS Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Other currency (losses)/gains (13,479) 665
4 REVENUE Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Bank interest 25 62
5 OPERATING EXPENSES Year ended Year ended
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Payable to the Manager and its associates:
Management fee (4,750) (2,619)
Performance fee (1,535) (1,944)
(6,285) (4,563)
Payable to the Trustee and its associates:
Trustee fees (290) (159)
Other expenses:
Audit fees 8) (8)
Formation expenses (18) (15)
Other sundry expenses (76) (12)
(102) (35)
Total operating expenses (6,677) (4,757)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
6 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 23 July 1999, which constituted Republic Uni-Folio, Republic
Management (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Manager of the Fund, dealing with its administrative
affairs. With effect from 31 March 2000, the Manager changed its name to HSBC Republic Management
(Guernsey) Limited. With effect from 1 January 2004, the Manager changed its name to HSBC Management
(Guernsey) Limited. The Manager receives a management fee of 1.65% of the net asset value per annum. The
fee outstanding at the year end was US$406,522 (2008: US$418,344).

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 23 July 1999, which constituted Republic Uni-Folio, Republic National
Bank of New York (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Trustee. With effect from 14 January 2000, the
Trustee changed its name to HSBC Republic Bank (Guernsey) Limited. With effect from 1 January 2004, the
Trustee changed its name to HSBC Private Bank (Guernsey) Limited. With effect from 31 May 2008, the
Trustee changed its name to HSBC Private Bank (C.I) Limited. The Trustee receives a fee of 0.10% of the net
asset value per annum. The fee outstanding at the year end was US$24,907 (2008: US$25,353).

Under the terms of an agreement dated 30 April 2004, the Manager appointed HSBC Republic Investments
Limited as the Investment Advisers of the Fund. With the effect 1 January 2007 the Investment Advisor
changed its name to HSBC Alternative Investments Limited. The Manager is entitled to a performance
incentive fee of 10% of new “excess” value over the Index (US Dollar 3 Month LIBOR plus 3.5% per annum).
The performance fee outstanding at the period end was US$Nil (2008: US$1,114,768).

There were no soft commission arrangements during the year.

7 DEBTORS
2009 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Amounts paid in advance on securities purchased - 50,000
Unrealised gains on forward contracts 739 -
Prepaid formation expense 45 44
784 50,044
8 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2009 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Cash and bank balances 4,603 6,295
9 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2009 2008
US$'000 US$'000
Amounts received in advance of issuing shares (4,170) (33,613)
Unrealised losses on forward contracts (35) (310)
Accrued management expenses (407) (418)
Accrued performance fees - (1,115)
Accrued trustee fees (25) (25)
Other accrued expenses (112) (4)
(4,648) (35,485)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
10 TAXATION STATUS
The umbrella fund, HSBC Uni-Folio Fund, is exempt from Guernsey income tax under the Income Tax
(Exempt Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinance 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP 600 (2008:
GBP 600).
11 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) is a sub-fund of HSBC Uni-Folio, a unit trust which is authorised
as a Class B Scheme under the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990.

The Fund owns 100% of the shares in HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Investments Limited (the “Company”), a BVI
registered company. The Fund also loaned monies to the Company to fund its investing activities.

The Company owns the investments listed in the Portfolio Statement. The purpose of a Company holding the
investments is to facilitate recoverable withholding tax on distributions being reclaimed.

These financial statements include all the assets and liabilities of the Fund and the Company.

12 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES IN ISSUE

Number Number Number Number Number
US Dollar Class Euro Class GBP Class JPY Class Total
Redeemable participating shares in issue
at 1 August 2008 1,276,476.98 225,441.71 216,889.45 -1,718,808.14
Issued on subscriptions 633,900.69 179,745.99 81,149.26 70,000.00 964,795.94
Redemptions (627,124.23) (158,221.73) (61,263.10) - (846,609.06)
Redeemable participating shares in issue
at 31 July 2009 1,283,253.44 246,965.97 236,775.61 70,000.00 1,836,995.02
Number Number Number Number
US Dollar Class Euro Class GBP Class Total
Redeemable participating shares in issue
at 1 August 2007 525,969.58 19,000.86 178,157.15 723,127.59
Issued on subscriptions 876,074.09 219,939.39 67,233.31 1,163,246.79
Redemptions (125,566.69) (13,498.54) (28,501.01) (167,566.24)
Redeemable participating shares in issue
at 31 July 2008 1,276,476.98 225,441.71 216,889.45 1,718,808.14
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HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited acts as Trustee to the Fund.

The Fund also places money on deposit with the Trustee on a regular basis throughout the year. The interest
rate received is consistent with that received on normal commercial deposits.

The Fund may borrow up to 25% of its Net Asset Value for a period of up to one month to cover a cash
shortfall caused by mismatched settlement dates on purchase and sale transactions and to finance
redemptions. HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) provided loans of US$54,102,394 (2008: US$41,272,631) to the Fund
during the year. Loans of US$54,102,394 (2008: US$47,062,289) were repaid. At the year end US$Nil (2008:
USS$NIl) inclusive of interest was outstanding. Interest was charged at an average floating rate of 2.79% (2008:
4.88%) per annum. US$127,540 (2008: US$246,117) interest was charged for the year.

14 FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Assets may be denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each share class and certain
currency exposure will be hedged back to the relevant share class currency. Hedging for this purpose may be
by means of forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such contracts or by using such other derivative
instruments as may be available and having the same or similar effect. The Investment Adviser retains the right
to vary the policy on currency hedging at its absolute discretion. All costs of such hedging will be met by the
Holders of the relevant share class only.

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 31 July 2009 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - Euro Class.

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Gain
US$'000

28-Aug-09 EUR32,567,000 US$45,700,620 State Street Boston 189
28-Aug-09 EUR 2,022,655 US$2,850,387 State Street Boston -
189

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 31 July 2009 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - GBP Class.

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Gain
US$'000

28-Aug-09 GBP32,903,000 US$53,865,501 State Street Boston 550
28-Aug-09 GBP453,326 US$749,807 State Street Boston -
550

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 31 July 2009 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - JPY Class.

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Loss
US$'000

28-Aug-09 JPY666,038,000 US$7,000,904 State Street Boston (35)
(35)

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 31 July 2008 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - Euro Class.

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Loss
US$’000

29-Aug-08 EUR32,082,185 US$50,217,751 State Street Boston (207)
(207)

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 31 July 2008 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - GBP Class.

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Loss
US$'000

29-Aug-08 GBP31,955,397 US$63,286,512 State Street Boston (103)
(103)
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The main risks arising from the Fund’s financial instruments are market price, foreign currency, liquidity and
credit risks.

(a) Market risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the
potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The
Investment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in order to minimise the risk associated with
particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund’s investment objective.

Market risk embodies the potential for both loss and gains and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk. The profitability of the Fund’s investment programme depends to a great extent on correct
assessments of the future course of price movements of securities and equities and other investments. There
can be no assurance that the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price movements. The securities
markets have in recent years been characterised by great volatility and unpredictability. With respect to the
investment strategy into which the Investment Adviser has invested the Fund’s assets, there is always some,
and from time to time a significant, degree of market risk.

Details of the Fund’s investment portfolio at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the portfolio statement
included on page 16.

(b) Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual

investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the market.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard investment and borrowing restrictions as defined in the
prospectus. The Fund’s investment restrictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Custodian of the Fund
and reviewed quarterly by the Board of Directors. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and
reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come close to restriction levels.

(c) Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than
its functional currency. Consequently the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative
to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse affect on the value of that portion of
the Funds assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than US Dollars.

The Funds currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies
and procedures in place. All currency exposure at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency of the relevant
share class on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund’s overall currency positions and
exposures are monitored on a monthly basis by the Board of Directors.

The Fund also offers redeemable participating shares denominated in Euro, British Pound Sterling and
Japanese Yen exposing the Fund to foreign currency risk. This risk is mitigated by the Fund entering into
foreign exchange contracts as described further in this note.

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the
foreign currencies at 31 July 2009.

Total
Currency Total Forward FX Net
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
British Pound Sterling - 55,165 55,165
Euro - 48,740 48,740
Japanese Yen - 6,966 6,966
US Dollar 291,358 (110,167) 181,191
291,358 704 292,062
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(c) Foreign currency risk — (continued)

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the
foreign currencies at 31 July 2008

Total
Currency Total Forward FX Net
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
British Pound Sterling (207) 63,297 63,090
Euro (247) 50,074 49,927
US Dollar 291,550 (113,681) 177,869
291,196 (310) 290,886

(d) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund'’s financial assets are in investments which neither pay interest nor have a maturity
date. The underlying funds, the Fund invests in are exposed to interest rate risk; however the Fund mitigates
the risk by diversifying its investments.

The Fund borrowed US$54,102,394 during the year at an average floating rate of 2.79%, which was fully
repaid by year end. To minimise interest rate risk the Fund enters into floating rate loan agreements.

Other Assets and Liabilities bear no interest rate risk except for cash and bank balances which are subject to
the variable interest rate.

(e) Liquidity risk

The main liability of the Fund is the redemption of any shares that investors wish to sell. The risk is that the
Fund might not be able to liquidate investment positions in order to repay amounts demanded by its
shareholders.

The Fund’s liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Manager in accordance with
policies and procedures in place. It is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds, limited
partnerships or other vehicles that have no liquidity. The Fund’s overall liquidity risks are monitored on a
quarterly basis by the Board of Directors.

Residual Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund’s financial liabilities at 31 July 2009:

Less than 1 Greater than

year 1to 5 years 5 years Total
US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000

Liabilities
Amounts received in advance of issuing shares (4,170) - - (4,170)
Unrealised loss on forward contracts (35) - - (35)
Accrued expenses (443) - - (443)
Total (4,648) - - (4,648)

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund’s financial liabilities at 31 July 2008:

Less than 1 Greater than

year 1to 5 years 5 years Total
US$ ‘000  US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000

Liabilities
Amounts received in advance of issuing shares (33,613) - - (33,613)
Unrealised loss on forward contracts (310) - - (310)
Accrued expenses (1,562) - - (1,562)
Total (35,485) - - (35,485)
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (CONTINUED)
(e) Liquidity risk — (continued)

The Fund'’s investment restrictions, as defined in the prospectus, some of which pertain to the management of
liquidity risk and concentrations thereof are monitored on a monthly basis by the custodian of the Fund. There
are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come
close to restriction levels.

The Manager may limit the number of shares in the Fund which may be redeemed on any dealing day.

(f) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a Counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund will be exposed to a credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement
default. The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with different
counterparties.

Substantially all of the assets and cash of the Fund are held by the Custodian - State Street Custodial Services
(Ireland) Limited. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund'’s rights with respect to
securities held by the Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Company monitors its risk by monitoring the
credit quality of the Custodian of the Fund.

16 DISTRIBUTION POLICY
The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend. All income will be “rolled-up”.

17 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR
During the year the Fund issued the JPY Share Class. This Share Class was launched on 30 January 2009.

Due to a merger the Administrator changed from Investors Fund Services (Ireland) Limited to State Street
Fund Services (Ireland) Limited and the Custodian changed from Investors Trust and Custodial Services
(Ireland) Limited to State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited. The Administration and Custodian
agreements were novated on 1 February 2009. The office of Administrator was held throughout the year by
Investors Fund Services (Ireland) Limited/State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited respectively.

18 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no significant events affecting the Fund since year end that require amendment to or
disclosure in the financial statements.
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

PORTFOLIO STATEMENT AS AT 31 JULY 2009

Security Description Holding Market value % of total
US$'000 net assets
Mutual Funds
U.S. Dollar (2008: 92.83%)
AHL Core Advanced 15,749,271.00 19,860 6.80%
Bluetrend Fund Ltd - USD - Class A 18,373.77 4,454 1.53%
Bluetrend Fund Ltd - USD - Class B 14,934.97 3,442 1.18%
Bluetrend Fund Ltd - Class B 181,990.34 41,943 14.36%
Boronia Diversified Fund USD 25,481.00 44,026 15.07%
Crabel Fund - Class A Series LXXIV 10,000.00 9,329 3.19%
Crabel Fund - Class A, Series XIlI 300.00 449 0.15%
Crabel Fund Ltd CI-A S-l Usd M 305.68 1,353 0.46%
Crabel Furures Fund Mar 08 USD 5,000.00 4,898 1.68%
Crabel Futures Fund - Series XLIV USD 1,600.00 2,345 0.80%
Crabel Futures Fund Apr 08 USD 5,000.00 4,743 1.62%
Crabel Futures Fund May 08 USD 2,500.00 2,392 0.82%
Crabel Futures Fund USD Mutual 260.00 392 0.13%
Crabel Futures Fund USD Mutual 750.00 1,034 0.35%
Crabel Futures Fund USD Mutual 1,250.00 1,664 0.57%
Crabel Futures Fund USD Mutual 3,160.00 4,876 1.67%
Crabel Futures Fund XLVI USD 6,590.00 9,127 3.13%
Crabel Futures XLV USD Mutual 1,080.00 1,540 0.53%
Crabel Futures Series XXXVII USD Mutual 441.98 663 0.23%
Discus Fund USD Mutual Fund 11,075.83 - 0.00%
Discus Feeder Limited B USD 36,843.34 43,878 15.02%
GSA Capital Futures Fund Limited 5,472.10 543 0.19%
Tulip Trend Fund USD Mutual Fund 11,752.47 39,722 13.60%
Winton Futures Lead Series USD 72,436.20 48,650 16.66%
Portfolio of Investments 291,323 99.74%
Net current assets 739 0.26%
Total net assets 292,062 100.00%
31 July 2009 31 July 2008
Redeemable participating shares in issue
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class 1,283,253.44 1,276,476.98
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund EUR Class 246,965.97 225,441.71
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund GBP Class 236,775.61 216,889.45
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund JPY Class 70,000.00 -
Net asset value per share
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class US$144.34 US$145.19
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund EUR Class EUR131.30 EUR131.69
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund GBP Class GBP138.41 GBP137.85
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund JPY Class JPY9,505.75 -
Total Net Asset Value
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund US$ Class (US$'000) 185,216 185,328
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund EUR Class (EUR’000) 32,425 29,688
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund GBP Class (GBP’000) 32,771 29,897
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund JPY Class (JPY’000) 665,402 -

*Listed securities comprise 38.48% of net assets (2008: 32.36%)

Portfolio Classification

Securities with an official stock exchange listing
Unlisted securities
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009*
(UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Description Nominal Cost
US$'000
Discus Feeder Limited B USD 36,843 40,000
GSA Capital Futures Fund Ltd 203,222 25,000
AHL Core Advanced 15,749,271 20,000
Winton Futures Lead Series USD 14,505 10,637
Crabel Fund Class A LXXIV 10,000 10,000
Winton Futures Aug Sub 100,000 10,000
Boronia Diversified Fund 2,856 5,000
Tulip Trend Fund 1,768 5,000
Bluetrend Class A Gsy 18,374 4,298
Bluetrend Class B Gsy 14,935 3,333
Winton Evolution Fund 25,698 2,525
GSA Capital Futures FD Limited 5,472 548
136,341
Sales
Description Nominal Proceeds
US$'000
Renaissance Institutional Futures 2 30,001
GSA Capital Future Funds 203,222 20,774
Winton Evolution Fund 13,855 17,126
Tulip Trend Fund 4,355 15,000
Winton Futures Aug Sub 100,000 10,637
Boronia Diversified Fund USD M 5,918 10,000
Tulip Trend Fund USD Mutual Fund 2,628 10,000
Boronia Diversified Fund 2,701 5,000
Winton Evolution Fund USD Mutual 25,698 2,435
120,973

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceeding 2% of the net
assets of the fund at the start of the period. In any event, at a minimum, the 20 largest purchases and 20 largest
sales must be shown.
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(2009 11 )

50,163,997.00 4,354,737

2,550,919. 32 221, 445

(a-b) 47,613,077.68 4,133,291
252,697.59
181.209 15,738
(2009 11 )
( )
33,254,281.16 2,886,804
3,006,354. 72 260, 982
(a-b) 30,247,926.44 2,625,822
153, 164. 42
165.75 14,3809
(2009 11 )
« - )
17,910,549.64 2,332,133
1,343,020.91 174,875
(a-b) 16,567,528.73 2,157,258

67,573.69

134.31 17,489
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(2009 11 )

¢ - )

48,638,957.87 4,222,348

2,065,938.80 179, 344

(a-b) 46,573,019.07 4,043,004
253,811.54
114,400. 17
109. 43 9,500
109.26 14,227
(2008 11 )
« - )
294,101,741.94 25,530, 972
18,802,954.20 1,632,284
(a-b) 275,298, 787.74 23,898, 688

1,134,345.65
173,219. 13

147 .31 12,788
133.87 17,431
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) ( )
120, 354. 4|9 35,917. 7 84, 436. 71
(0) (0) (0)
42,709. 3¢ 13,351. 8 113, 794. 2|9
(0) (0) (0)
112, 454. 7|9 19, 853. 18 206, 395. 90
(2,641.52) (0) (2,641.52)
84,144.6] 42,395. 62 248, 144. 8|9
(32,608. 1]0) (0) (35,249. 6[2)
52,232.7 117, 208. 3|4 183, 169. 2|6
(5,114.67) (0) (40,364.2[9)
111.07 110, 861. 5|6 72,418.77
(0) (27,388. 3|8) (12,975. 9|1)
) ( )
() ()
16,398. 583, 466.1B350, 16f1.11 0| 103, 09p. 93
(2008 10 20009 31 ()0 (0 (0 (o (0
) ( )
() ()
7,187| 871, 249. 5@, 575. 92 0 40,514.609
(2008 10 20009 sea6dp.[a6) (o0 (o (o (969.[46)
) ( )
520, 895. 1|7 9,338.17 511, 557. 0|0
(9,261.66) (0) (9,261.66¢)
150, 368. 3[6 135, 955. 7[8 525, 969. 5[8
(3,066.92) (0) (12, 328.5[8)
876, 074.0[9 125, 566. 6|9 1,276, 476.|98
(225,914. 63) (0) (238,243.%21)
633, 900. 6|9 627, 124. 2[3 1,283,253.[44
(165,994.40) (26,668.0[1) (377,569.60)
( ) 12 HSBC
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( )

17,122. 84 0 17,122. 84
(0) (0) (0)
6,248.67 4,370.65 19, 000. 8 {
(0) (0) (0)
219, 939. 3|9 13,498.54 225, 441. 7|1
(0) (0) (0)
179, 745. 9|9 158, 221. 7|3 246, 965. 9|7
(1,283.61) (0) (1,283.61)
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(1)
2009 11 100, 000 ( 1,433 )
100, 000
100, 000

(2)

(3)

(Peter Harwogd) 0
HSBC

. 0
(Ni gel Webben) HSBC

(Paul Wrench) 1

(Michael Quarnrington) 0

13
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HSBC
( )
( )
2009 11 ( 4,379
( )
(2009 11 )
HSBC
2,17p. 8
(HSBC Portfolio Selecftion Fund)
HSBC -
(HSBC Uni-Folio) 4466
HSBC
(HSBC Alternative Porftfolio) 120} 4
HSBC
487} 2
(HSBC Alternative Strjlategy Fund)
HSBC
UCI TS 316} 9
(HSBC Private Bank Wofld Funds pl c)
(The Hermitage Fund) 81.3
HSBC
112] 1
(HSBC Gl obal Absolute Limitecs )
(Various Private Equify Republic 6373
Syndicates)
HSBC
1.4
(HSBC Alternative Investmentg Portfolio)
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2008

2007

311,897 27,076 112, 380 9, 756

37,495, 05%, 254
17,043, 4012, 479

943, 691, 751, 188, 581
5383, 727,141, 191, 653

13,060 1,134

54,538, 458, 734

4847, 431, 952, 381, 368

1,449,695125,
4,753,824412,
10 14,883, 6616, 292

637,799 55,367

8482, 730,298237,017

6796,587,474571, 859

o512, 427,599, 078, 840

21,087,185, 830

5782,383, 1710, 943, 083

33,451,274, 903

905,048, 782438, 285

33,763,172, 930

985bH, 161, 162448, 040

11 157, 762 13,
33,605, 4038, 917

695 157, 762 13,695

286,003, 400434, 345

33,763,172, 930

98b, 161, 162448, 040

2009 27
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HSBC ( )

20082 31

2008 2007

125,163, 8%, 865, 4/8B1, 696, 18@, 564, 446
727,764 63,177 880, 894 76,470
55,014 4,776 223,779 19, 426

— — 472,598 41,026

125,946, 6Iry%, 933, 4323, 273, 4658, 701, 368

(57,790, 0(38,,)016, 7566, 789, 2(68,)797, 976)
(26,094, 882,265, 2Q0%0, 073, 4(7Z7,)610, 679)
(7,798,283%76,969%, 168, 13635, 455)

12 (2,613,6771R226,89808, 430, 734R97,822)
(1,485,051)128,917) — _

(933,002)(80,994)(649,927)(56, 420)
(515, 427)(44,744)(397,379)(34, 496)
(74,572) (6,474) (82,099) (7,127)

(33,278) (2,889) (56,937) (4,943)

(97,338, 205,)449, 930y, 647, ¢93)B844, 919)

28,608, 46D, 483, 5015, 625, 5010, 356, 450

(6,460) (561) (3,125,10QR71,290)

28,602, 00X, 482, 94102, 500, 400, 085, 160
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HSBC ( )

20082 31

2008 157,762 13,695%,003, 40634, 345,161, 16248, 040

— — 28,602, 2094982, 92480, 602, 20H482, 940

2008 12 31 157,762 13,6983, 605, 209917, 2386 763, 127,193 0, 981

2007 157,762 13,6985, 503, 30082, 03155 660, 7362095, 711

— — 12,500, 400085, 11620 500, 40085, 160

( 430 ) — — (43,000,(030,07)3 2 ,(84330,)000,(080,07)32, 830)

2007 12 31 157,762 13,69%,003,40634,345,161,16248, 040
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HSBC ( )

20082 31

2008 2007

28,608, 46D, 483, 5015, 625, 5010, 356, 450

74,572 6,474 82,099 7,127

28,683,042, 489, 975, 707, 5919, 363, 577

(3,303,201R86, 751495, 027)(42,973)

(658, 186)(57, 1372, 119, 947184, 033

24,721,652, 146, 0877, 332,519,504, 636

(644,259)(55, 92803, 157, 432R74,097)

24,077,395, 090, 154,175, 0817, 230, 539

(274,089)(23,794) (34,226) (2,971)

(274,089)(23,794) (34,226) (2,971)

— — (43,000, 00D,)732, 830)

— — (43,000, 000,)732, 830)

23,803,305, 066,3628, 859, 1(39,)505, 262)

13,691, 751, 188, 5842, 550, 893, 693, 843

37,495, 05%, 254, 943, 691, 7511, 188, 581
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10
331/3

HSBC

HSBC

HSBC HSBC HSBC
HSBC

2008 12 31 19,455,533
2007 13,024,586

120,484 2007 135,201
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2008 1 1 122,093 911,715 1,033,808
- 274,089 274,089
2008 12 31 122,093 1,185,804 1,307,897
2008 1 1 102,308 819,120 921,428
8,843 65,729 74,572
2008 12 31 111,151 884,849 996,000
2008 12 31 10,942 300,955 311,897
2007 12 31 19,785 92,595 112,380
2008 12 31 HSBC C.l.
37,294,647 2007 13,491,341 2008
727,764 2007 880,894
2008 2007
15,361,000 11,561,277
1,395,842 1,737,237
286,560 428,627
17,043,402 13,727,141
2008 2007
- 3,125,100
6,460 -
6,460 3,125,100
2008 1 1 0%

20
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10

11

2008 2007
28,608,469 15,625,500
- 3,125,100
- 3,125,100
6,460 -
6,460 3,125,100
2008 2007
1,449,695 2,730,298
4,753,824 6,587,474
6,203,519 9,317,772
2008 2007
13,063,009 10,529,607
1,622,427 1,825,634
198,230 72,358
14,883,666 12,427,599
2008 2007
100,000 100,000 100,000
100,000 157,762 157,762
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14
2008 12 31
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2008 2007
727,764 880,894
(20,732,883) (22,041,375)
(23,087,294) (25,967,480)
(1,744,504) (2,078,900)
5,212,686,479 2007
4,276,044 2007 31,497,797
HSBC
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2008 2007
401,961 6,065,465
4,950 6,179,749
68,616 361,938
5,544 63,110
49,347 32,103
15,812 13,341
12 31 5%
5%
2007

2008 2007
(19,141) (288,832)
2,114 (292,745)
(2,514) (16,600)
(264) (3,005)
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HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC

HSBC

HSBC

HSBC

HSBC
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HSBC

2008 12 31

33,763,171

100,000 150,000

5,655,007 25 1,413,752

33,763,171
(1,413,752)
32,349,419
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from funds under

management
Other assets

Current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Liability for current tax

Amounts due to fellow subsidiary
companies

Amounts due to related companies
Other liabilities

Current liabilities

Net current assets

Net assets
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Called up share capital

Retained earnings

Total shareholders' equity

Notes 2008 2007
Us$ us$

5 311,897 112,380
6 37,495,057 13,691,751
3&7 17,043,402 13,727,141
- 13,060

54,538,459 27,431,952

8 - 637,799

9 1,449,695 2,730,298
9 4,753,824 6,587,474
10 14,883,666 12,427,599
21,087,185 22,383,170

33,451,274 5,048,782

US$ 33,763,171 uUS$ 5,161,162

11 157,762 157,762
33,605,409 5,003,400

US$ 33,763,171 US$ 5,161,162

The financial statements on pages 6 to 19 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2009 and are

signed on its behalf by:

P HARWOOD
DIRECTOR

P WRENCH
DIRECTOR

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Notes 2008 2007
US$ US$ US$ US$

INCOME
Management fees 3 125,163,896 121,696,182
Bank interest 6 127,764 880,894
Sundry income 55,014 223,779
Foreign exchange gain 2 - 472,598

125,946,674 123,273,453
EXPENSES
Commissions 3 57,790,031 66,789,269
Investment advisory fees 3 26,094,884 30,073,477
Trustee and custody fees 7,798,283 6,168,131
Salaries and benefits 2,613,677 3,430,734
Foreign exchange loss 2 1,485,051 -
Other expenses 4 933,002 649,927
Management fees paid to group
company 515,427 397,379
Depreciation 2&5 74,572 82,099
Fees paid to non-executive
directors 33,278 56,937

(97,338,205) (107,647,953)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 28,608,469 15,625,500
TAXATION 8 (6,460) (3,125,100)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 28,602,009 12,500,400

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Share Capital Retained Earnings Total Equity
us$ Us$ us$
AT 1 JANUARY 2008 157,762 5,003,400 5,161,162
Net income - 28,602,009 28,602,009
AT 31 DECEMBER 157,762 33,605,409 33,763,171
2008
Share Capital Retained Earnings Total Equity
(URH] Us$ Us$
AT 1 JANUARY 2007 157,762 35,503,000 35,660,762
Net income - 12,500,400 12,500,400
Dividend paid (US$430 per - (43,000,000) (43,000,000)
share)
AT 31 DECEMBER 157,762 5,003,400 5,161,162
2007

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

2008 2007
US$ US$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 28,608,469 15,625,500
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation 74,572 82,099
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working
capital 28,683,041 15,707,599
Changes in working capital:
- (Increase) in other assets (3,303,201) (495,027)
- (Decrease)/increase in other liabilities (658,186) 2,119,947
24,721,654 17,332,519
- Tax paid (644,259) (3,157,432)
Net cash generated from operating activities 24,077,395 14,175,087
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of plant and equipment (274,089) (34,226)
Cash used in investing activities (274,089) (34,226)
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid to shareholders - (43,000,000)
Cash used in financing activities - (43,000,000)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 23,803,306 (28,859,139)
EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING 13,691,751 42,550,890
OF THE YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 37,495,057US$ 13,691,751

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY’S INCORPORATION

HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (the ‘Company’) was registered and in Guernsey on 25 September 1986.
The Company is domiciled in Guernsey and a wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC Investment Holdings (Guernsey)

Limited which is registered in Guernsey. The ultimate holding company is HSBC Holdings plc, which is a publicly
quoted company incorporated in the United Kingdom.

The principal activity of the Company is the management of a variety of funds.

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited prepares its financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS'). IFRS comprise accounting standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and its predecessor body as well as interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee and its predecessor body.

(b) The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

(c) The preparation of financial information requires the use of estimates and assumptions about future
conditions. Use of available information and application of judgement are inherent in the formation of
estimates. Actual results in the future may differ from those reported.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

In the opinion of management, all normal and recurring adjustments considered necessary for a fair

presentation of the Company’s net income, financial position and cash flows in these financial statements
have been made.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the Company's financial statements:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with IFRS.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). These financial statements are presented in US dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign exchange

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US dollar based on rates of exchange
ruling at the Balance Sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at month end rates
during the year. Foreign exchange gains and losses are included in the Income Statement. The exception to this
policy is that the Sterling share capital is translated at historic cost.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated at the following annual rates so as to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method:

Furniture, fixture and fittings 10%
Computer hardware and related software 331/3%

Computer software costs, other than those specifically related to hardware, are fully written off and are expensed as
incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and short term deposit accounts.

Revenue recognition

Management fees and administration fees are accounted for on an accruals basis. Performance fees are recognised
when the entitlement to performance fee is reasonably established.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. FEES

Management fees

The Company receives management fees and trustee fees based on the underlying net asset value of the
respective funds. Management fees are recognized on an accruals basis.

Commissions

The Company, at its discretion, has agreed to pay return commissions to those branches, fellow subsidiaries,
affiliates and associates of the HSBC Group entities and certain approved third parties introducing subscribers to
funds under management. The return commissions are two fold: firstly a return of the Initial Charge and
secondly an ongoing trailer commission based on the net asset value of monies introduced by Units and which
remain invested. Commissions are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Investment advisory fees

The Company pays investment advisory fees to fellow subsidiaries, associates of the HSBC Group entities and
third parties providing investment advice to the funds under management. Investment advisory fees are
accounted for on an accruals basis.

Manager’s performance fees

Under the management agreement with the HSBC Multi-Adviser Funds, HSBC Unifolio Funds, HSBC
Alternative Portfolio Funds, HSBC Alternative Investments Portfolio Funds and The Hermitage Fund, the
Company is entitled to receive a performance fee. The Company has the ability to share any such performance
fees received with associates and investment advisers as appropriate. Performance fees totalling US$19,455,533
have been received in the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: US$13,024,586). An expense for performance
fees payable is recognized when the right to recover performance fee income is established.

4. OTHER EXPENSES
Other expense include rental charges of US$120,484 (2007: US$135,201) where the Company is the lessee. The

premises of the Company are rented and this agreement has expired. The renewal of the property lease is
currently being negotiated.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fixtures and Computer Total
fittings hardware &
related software
Uss$ uUs$ Us$
COST
At 1 January 2008 122,093 911,715 1,033,808
Additions - 274,089 274,089
At 31 December 2008 122,093 1,185,804 1,307,897
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2008 102,308 819,120 921,428
Charge for year 8,843 65,729 74,572
At 31 December 2008 111,151 884,849 996,000
NET BOOK AMOUNT 10,942 300,955 311,897
At 31 December 2008
At 31 December 2007 19,785 92,595 112,380

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2008 are balances with a related party, HSBC Private

Bank (C.1.) Limited, of US$37,294,647 (2007: US$13,491,341). During 2008 the Company earned interest on
these balances of US$727,764 (2007: US$880,894).

7. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

Management fees
Other fees
Trustee fess
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US$

15,361,000
1,395,842
286,560

US$ 17,043,402

2007
USs$

11,561,277
1,737,237
428,627

USs$ 13,727,141




HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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8. TAXATION

The charge for taxation comprises:

Guernsey tax charge — current year

Guernsey tax charge — adjustment in respect of prior

years

Tax expense

2008
US$

6,460

uUss 6,460

2007
us$

3,125,100

Us$ 3,125,100

With effect from 1 January 2008, the standard rate of income tax for Guernsey companies changed. From this
date the Company is now taxed at the company standard rate of 0%. Therefore the tax included on the financial
statements is based on this rate. The comparative figures have been prepared using a 20% tax rate.

The actual tax charge differs from the expected tax charge computed by applying the standard rate of Guernsey

tax as follows:

Profit before tax

Expected tax charge
Effect of:
Disallowed items

Under provisions — prior year

Current tax charge
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28,608,469

6,460

Us$ 6,460
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US$
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3,125,100
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. AMOUNTS DUE TO GROUP COMPANIES

2008 2007
us$ US$
Amounts due to fellow subsidiary companies 1,449,695 2,730,298
Amounts due to related companies 4,753,824 6,587,474
US$ 6,203,519 uUSs$ 9,317,772
Amounts due to Group Companies are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
10. OTHER LIABILTIES
2008 2007
US$ Us$
Commission payable 13,063,009 10,529,607
Other creditors 1,622,427 1,825,634
Investment advisory fee payable 198,230 72,358
(URH 14,883,666 Us$ 12,427,599
11. SHARE CAPITAL
2008 2007
Authorised: £ £
100,000 ordinary shares of £ 1 each £ 100,000 £ 100,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid: Us$ US$
100,000 ordinary shares of £ 1 each
(translated at historic cost) uUss$ 157,762 Us$ 157,762

The ordinary shares which represent the equity interests have the following rights attached:

They carry the right to any fixed dividend as may from time to time be recommended by the Directors and

declared by the Company;

They have voting rights with each share carrying one vote;

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and
have been disclosed in these financial statements.

Apart from transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company entered
into the following transactions with its fellow subsidiary companies and related companies:

2008 2007
Us$ Us$
INCOME STATEMENT
Interest income 727,764 880,894
Commissions (20,732,883) (22,041,375)
Investment advisory fees (23,087,294) (25,967,480)
Trustee and custody fees (1,744,504) (2,078,900)

13. FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

The total net assets of funds under the Company's management at 31 December 2008 was US$5,212,686,479
(2007: US$6,144,022,616).

14. CLIENT ACCOUNTS

The total balance of client accounts at 31 December 2008 was US$4,276,044 (2007: US$31,497,797).
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15. RISK MANAGEMENT

a Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that financial loss arises from the failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its
obligations under a contract of fund administration. The Company has standards, policies and procedures
dedicated to controlling and monitoring risks from all such activities.
Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with HSBC Group companies where management considers the

credit risk to be minimal.

Other assets represent accrued bank interest receivable from HSBC Group companies and fees due from
funds under management which are short term in nature.

b Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that the value of funds under management decrease with a resultant effect on income.

The Company manages market risk through risk limits approved by the Asset and Liability Management

Committee (ALCO).

¢ Foreign exchange exposure

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company’s foreign exchange exposure arises from changes in the US$
equivalent value of amounts denominated in foreign currencies as set out below:

ASSETS
Euro

British Pound
Swiss Franc
Japanese Yen

LIABILITIES
British Pound
Swiss Franc

Sensitivity analysis

2008
US$

401,961
4,950
68,616
5,544

49,347
15,812

2007
US$

6,065,465
6,179,749
361,938
63,110

32,103
13,341

A 5 percent strengthening of the US dollar against the following currencies at 31 December would have
resulted in the profits (losses) shown below. A 5 percent weakening of the US dollar would have had the
equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. This analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

Euro

British Pound
Swiss Franc
Japanese Yen

2008
US$

(19,141)
2,114
(2,514)
(264)
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
d Liquidity management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in realising assets or otherwise raising
funds to meet commitments.

The Company uses various sources to provide a stable funding. These include maintaining bank balances in
instant access call accounts, inter-group funding and the Company’s shareholders’ equity.

e Capital management

The Company is regulated by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission which sets and monitors capital
requirements for the Company as described on page 20. Management regularly monitors the Company’s
capital to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Guernsey Financial Services Commission.

f Interest risk management

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk is limited to its cash and cash equivalents (note 6). The
Company only maintains interest bearing call accounts and as such interest rate risk is minimal.

g Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising through fraud, unauthorised activities, error, omission,
inefficiency, systems failure or from external events. It is inherent to every business organisation and covers
a wide spectrum of issues.

The HSBC Group manages this risk through a controls-based environment in which processes are
documented, authorisation is independent and transactions are reconciled and monitored. This is supported
by an independent programme of periodic reviews undertaken by internal audit, and by monitoring external
operational risk events, which ensures that the HSBC Group stays in line with best practice and takes
account of lessons learned from publicised operational failures within the financial services industry.

The HSBC Group has codified its operational risk management process by issuing a high level standard.
This explains how the HSBC Group manages operational risk by identifying, assessing, monitoring,
controlling and mitigating the risk, rectifying operational risk events, and implementing any additional
procedures required for compliance with local regulatory requirements. The processes undertaken to
manage operational risk are determined by reference to the scale and nature of each HSBC Group operation.
The HSBC Group standard covers the following:

Operational risk management responsibility is assigned at a senior management level within the
business operation;

Information systems are used to record the identification and assessment of operational risks and
generate appropriate, regular management reporting;

Operational risks are identified by risk assessments covering operational risks facing each business and
risks inherent in processes, activities and products. Risk assessment incorporates a regular review of
risks identified to monitor significant changes;

Operational risk loss data is collected and reported to senior management. This report covers aggregate
operational risk losses and details of incidents above a materiality threshold; and

Risk mitigation, including insurance, is considered where this is cost-effective.

Local management is responsible for implementation of the HSBC Group standard on operational risk.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

h Reputational risk management

The safeguarding of HSBC’s reputation is of paramount importance to its continued prosperity and is the
responsibility of every member of staff. Reputational risks can arise from social, ethical or environmental
issues, or as a consequence of operational risk events. As a banking group, HSBC’s good reputation
depends upon the way in which it conducts its business, but it can also be affected by the way in which
clients, to whom it provides financial services, conduct themselves.

Reputational risks are considered and assessed by the Board, the Group Management Board, the Risk
Management Meeting, subsidiary company boards, board committees and/or senior management during the
formulation of policy and the establishment of HSBC standards. Standards on all major aspects of business
are set for HSBC and for individual subsidiaries, businesses and functions. These policies, which are an
integral part of the internal control systems, are communicated through manuals and statements of policy
and are promulgated through internal communications and training. The policies set out operational
procedures in all areas of reputational risk, including money laundering deterrence, environmental impact,
anti-corruption measures and employee relations.

The Group internal audit function monitors compliance with policies and standard.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES AT 31 DECEMBER 2008

Us$
FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Gross capital per Balance Sheet on page 7 uUS$ 33,763,171
FINANCIAL RESOURCES REQUIREMENT
Absolute minimum requirement (£ 100,000) uUs$ 150,000
EXPENDITURE BASED REQUIREMENT
Expenditure per Income Statement US$5,655,007 x 25% US$ 1,413,752
SATISFACTION OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Financial resources 33,763,171
Financial resources required (1,413,752)

NET SURPLUS FINANCIAL RESOURCES us$ 32,349,419
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HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

We have audited the financial statements (the “financial statements”) of HSBC Asian AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) for the
year ended 31 July 2008 which comprise of the Statement of Total Return, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Movement in
Net Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares and the related notes. These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Fund’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Rule 4.02(3) of the Collective Investment
Scheme (Class B) Rules 1990. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund’s shareholders those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and the Fund’s shareholders as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditors

The Manager is responsible for preparing the report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable Guernsey law
and UK Accounting Standards, as set out in the Statement of Manager’s Responsibilities on page 4.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the principal documents. We also report to you
if, in our opinion, the Fund has not kept proper accounting records, or if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

We read the other information accompanying the financial statements and consider whether it is consistent with those
statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Manager in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Fund’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at 31 July
2008 and of its return for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the
principal documents.

KPMG CHANNEL ISLANDS LIMITED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Guernsey

Date: 28 November 2008
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

We have audited the financial statements (the “financial statements™) of HSBC Emerging AdvantEdge Fund (the“Fund”) for
the year ended 31 July 2008 which comprise of the Statement of Total Return, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Movement
in Net Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares and the related notes. These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Fund’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Rule 4.02(3) of the Collective Investment
Scheme (Class B) Rules 1990. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund’s shareholders those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and the Fund’s shareholders as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditors

The Manager is responsible for preparing the report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable Guernsey law
and UK Accounting Standards, as set out in the Statement of Manager’s Responsibilities on page 4.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the principal documents. We also report to you
if, in our opinion, the Fund has not kept proper accounting records, or if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

We read the other information accompanying the financial statements and consider whether it is consistent with those
statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Manager in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Fund’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at 31 July
2008 and of its return for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the
principal documents.

KPMG CHANNEL ISLANDS LIMITED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Guernsey

Date: 28 November 2008
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

We have audited the financial statements (the “financial statements™”) of HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) for
the year ended 31 July 2008 which comprise of the Statement of Total Return, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Movement
in Net Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares and the related notes. These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Fund’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Rule 4.02(3) of the Collective Investment
Scheme (Class B) Rules 1990. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund’s shareholders those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and the Fund’s unitholders as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditors

The Manager is responsible for preparing the report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable Guernsey law
and UK Accounting Standards, as set out in the Statement of Manager’s Responsibilities on page 4.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the principal documents. We also report to you
if, in our opinion, the Fund has not kept proper accounting records, or if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

We read the other information accompanying the financial statements and consider whether it is consistent with those
statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Manager in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Fund’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at 31 July
2008 and of its return for the year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the
principal documents.

KPMG CHANNEL ISLANDS LIMITED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Guernsey

Date: 28 November 2008
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

We have audited the financial statements (the “financial statements”) of HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) for the
year ended 31 July 2008 which comprise of the Statement of Total Return, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Movements in
Net Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares and the related notes. These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Fund’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Rule 4.02(3) of the Collective Investment
Scheme (Class B) Rules 1990. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund’s shareholders those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and the Fund’s shareholders as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditors

The Manager is responsible for preparing the report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable Guernsey law
and UK Accounting Standards, as set out in the Statement of Managers Responsibilities on page 4.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the principal documents. We also report to you
if, in our opinion, the Fund has not kept proper accounting records, or if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

We read the other information accompanying the financial statements and consider whether it is consistent with those
statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Manager in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Fund’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at 31 July
2008 and of its return for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the
principal documents.

KPMG CHANNEL ISLANDS LIMITED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Guernsey

Date: 28 November 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements (the "financial statements™) of HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited
(the “Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the Income Statement, the Balance Sheet,
the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes. These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 64 of The Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 1994. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable Guernsey law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as set out in the Statement of
Directors' Responsibilities on page 2.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 1994. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
Company has not kept proper accounting records, or if we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit.

We read the Report of the Directors and consider the implication for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements within it.

We are also required to examine the Statement of Financial Resources set out on page 20 and confirm whether, in our
opinion, the financial resources requirement specified in Rule 4.02 of The Collective Investment Schemes (Designated
Persons) Rules, 1988 is satisfied.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED (continued)

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, of the state of the
Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 1994.
Furthermore, we have examined the Statement of Financial Resources set out on page 20 and in our opinion the

financial resources requirement specified in Rule 4.02 of The Collective Investment Schemes (Designated Persons)
Rules, 1988 was satisfied at 31 December 2007.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Chartered Accountants

28 March 2008
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HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

We have audited the financial statements of HSBC Asian AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) for the year ended 31 July
2009 which comprise of the Statement of Total Return, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Movement in Net Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares and the
related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Fund’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Rule 4.02(3) of the Collective
Investment Scheme (Class B) Rules 1990. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund’
s shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and
the Fund’s shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditors

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Manager’s report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable Guernsey law and UK Accounting Standards, as set out in the Statement of Manager's Responsibilities
on page 4.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the principal
documents. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Fund has not kept proper accounting records, or if we have
not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We read the other information accompanying the financial statements and consider whether it is consistent with
those statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the Manager in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Fund’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
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HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC ASIAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, of the state of the Fund’s affairs as
at 31 July 2009 and of its result for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990
and the principal documents.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Guernsey

Date: 14 December 2009
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

We have audited the financial statements of HSBC Emerging AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) for the year ended 31
July 2009 which comprise of the Statement of Total Return, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the
Statement of Movement in Net Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares and the
related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Fund’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Rule 4.02(3) of the Collective
Investment Scheme (Class B) Rules 1990. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund’
s shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and
the Fund’s shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditors

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Manager’s report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable Guernsey law and UK Accounting Standards, as set out in the Statement of Manager's Responsibilities
on page 4.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the principal
documents. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Fund has not kept proper accounting records, or if we have
not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We read the other information accompanying the financial statements and consider whether it is consistent with
those statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the Manager in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Fund’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
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HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC EMERGING ADVANTEDGE FUND

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, of the state of the Fund’s affairs as
at 31 July 2009 and of its result for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990
and the principal documents.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Guernsey

Date: 14 December 2009
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

We have audited the financial statements of HSBC European AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) for the year ended 31
July 2009 which comprise of the Statement of Total Return, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the
Statement of Movement in Net Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares and the
related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Fund’s Shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Rule 4.02(3) of the Collective
Investment Scheme (Class B) Rules 1990. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund’
s shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and
the Fund’s Shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditors

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Manager’s report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable Guernsey law and UK Accounting Standards, as set out in the Statement of Manager's Responsibilities
on page 4.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the principal
documents. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Fund has not kept proper accounting records, or if we have
not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We read the other information accompanying the financial statements and consider whether it is consistent with
those statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the Manager in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Fund’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
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HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC EUROPEAN ADVANTEDGE FUND

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, of the state of the Fund’s affairs as
at 31 July 2009 and of its result for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990
and the principal documents.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Guernsey

Date: 14 December 2009
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HSBC REAL ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC REAL ADVANTEDGE FUND

We have audited the financial statements of HSBC Real AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) for the period from 31 July
2008 to 31 July 2009 which comprise of the Statement of Total Return, the Balance Sheet, and the Statement of
Movement in Net Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares and the related notes.
These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Fund’s Shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Rule 4.02(3) of the Collective
Investment Scheme (Class B) Rules 1990. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund’
s shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and
the Fund’s Shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditors

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Manager’s report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable Guernsey law and UK Accounting Standards, as set out in the Statement of Manager's Responsibilities
on page 4.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the principal
documents. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Fund has not kept proper accounting records, or if we have
not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We read the other information accompanying the financial statements and consider whether it is consistent with
those statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the Manager in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Fund’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

356/364



EDINETOO OO

0000000000000000000000(E15060)
(o oo o o s o o o o o e o

HSBC REAL ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC REAL ADVANTEDGE FUND

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, of the state of the Fund’s affairs as
at 31 July 2009 and of its result for the period from 31 July 2008 to 31 July 2009; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990
and the principal documents.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Guernsey

Date: 14 December 2009
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

We have audited the financial statements of HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) for the year ended 31
July 2009 which comprise of the Statement of Total Return, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Movement in Net
Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares and the related notes. These financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Fund’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Rule 4.02(3) of the Collective
Investment Scheme (Class B) Rules 1990. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund’
s shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and
the Fund’s shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditors

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Manager’s report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable Guernsey law and UK Accounting Standards, as set out in the Statement of Managers Responsibilities
on page 4.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990 and the principal
documents. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Fund has not kept proper accounting records, or if we have
not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We read the other information accompanying the financial statements and consider whether it is consistent with
those statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the Manager in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Fund’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, of the state of the Fund’s affairs as
at 31 July 2009 and of its result for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990
and the principal documents.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Guernsey

Date: 14 December 2009

360/364



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC
2008 12 31 HSBC

1994 64

2
IFRS
1994
1988 4.02
2008 12 31
1994
1988 4.02

2008 12 31

361/364



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2009 3 30

362/364



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements (the "financial statements") of HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited
(the “Company™) for the year ended 31 December 2008 which comprise the Income Statement, the Balance Sheet,
the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes. These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 64 of The Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 1994. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable Guernsey law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as set out in the Statement of
Directors' Responsibilities on page 2.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 1994. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
Company has not kept proper accounting records, or if we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit.

We read the Report of the Directors and consider the implication for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements within it.

We are also required to examine the Statement of Financial Resources set out on page 20 and confirm whether, in our
opinion, the financial resources requirement specified in Rule 4.02 of The Collective Investment Schemes (Designated
Persons) Rules, 1988 is satisfied.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED (Continued)

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, of the state of the
Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2008 and of its profit for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 1994.
Furthermore, we have examined the Statement of Financial Resources set out on page 20 and in our opinion the

financial resources requirement specified in Rule 4.02 of The Collective Investment Schemes (Designated Persons)
Rules, 1988 was satisfied at 31 December 2008.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Chartered Accountants

30 March 2009
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